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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Jindal Stainless Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jindal Stainless Limited ('the
Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group’) and its associates, as listed in Annexure |, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principies generally accepted in India
inciuding Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated
profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

_ We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of cur report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAF) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we hawe fulfiled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of E thics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in paragraph 15 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters w ssed in the context of our audit of the
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont'd)

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key auditmatter

Carrying amount of investment in an
associate company and net assets of a
subsidiary company

The Group has Investment in equity
instruments of its associate company, Jindal
United Stee! Limited amounting to ¥ 158.21
crores and carries net assets amounting fo
7 30.50 crores in respect of a subsidiary, PT.
Jindal Stainless Indonesia in its consolidated
financial statements.

The Group assesses recoverability of the
investment in associate and net assets of the
subsidiary, which is a cash generating unit
(CGU", when impairment indicators exist by
comparing the fair value (less costs of
disposal) of investment in associate and value
in use of CGU with carrying -amounts thereof
as on the reporting date in accordance with Ind
AS 38, Impairment of Assets.

The fair value of the investment in associate
and value in use of the CGU is determined by
a  management-appointed independent
valuation specialist based on discounted cash
flow (DCF) method. The process of
computation of such fair value (less costs of
disposal) and value in use using DCF method
is complex. Management's assessment of
such valuations requires estimation and
judgement around assumptions used. The key
assumptions  underpinning management's
assessment include, but are not limited to,
projections of future cash flows, growth rates,
discount rates, estimated future operating and
capital expenditure.

The application of significant judgment in this
matter required substantial involvement of
internal and external valuation experts on the
audit engagement.

Our audit procedures were focused on
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
that the carrying amounts of investment in the
associate, Jindal United Steel Limited and net
assets of the subsidiary, PT. Jindal Stainless
Indonesia are not materially misstated. These
procedures included, but were not limited to,
the fallowing:

We  obtained an  understanding of
management's processes and controls for
determining the fair valuation of investment in
associate and value in use of the CGU. The
understanding was obtained by performance
of walkthroughs which included inspection of
documents produced by the Group and
discussion with those inwived in the process
of valuation.

In addition to the evaluation of design and
testing the operating effectiveness of controls
implemented for identification of impairment
indicators and measurement of impairment
provisions, we also performed the following
procedures:

« Assessed the qualification and objectivity of
the management-appointed independent
valuation specialist to determine the fair
value of investment in associate and value
in use of the CGU;

o Assessed the appropriateness of valuation
methodology used with the help of an
auditor's  expert, and tested the
mathematical accuracy of management's
medel;

« Reconciled the cash flow projections to the
business plans approved by the Group's
management;

« Challenged the management's assessment
of underlying assumptions used for the
cash fiow projections including the implied
growth  rates, considering evdence

Accordingly, assessment of impairment losses to : ) ' :
be recognised, if any, on the carrying amounts of available including the impact of COVID-19
investment in the associate company and net pandemic, where appropriate to support
assets of the CGU has been considered to be a these assumptions and our understanding

key audit matter for current year's audit. of the business;
e Tested the discount rate and long-term

growth rates used in the forecast inciuding
comparison to economic and industry
forecasts, where appropriate;

Chertered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd)

« Ewaluated the  sensitivity analysis

performed by management in respect of the
key assumptions such as discount and
growth rates to ensure there was sufficient
headroom with respect to the estimation
uncertainty impact of such assumptions on
the fair value and value in use calculation;

o Engaged intemal and external valuation
experts to obtain additional comfort on the
valuation technique used by management’s
valuation expert; .

« Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
gowernance on whether the significant
assumptions used in valuation of the
investment in the associate company and
value in use of the GGU are considered
reasonabie;

e« Ensured that disclosure in refation to
investment in associate and net assets of
subsidiary have been appropriately made in
the consolidated financial statements
including the related impairment indicators.

Recoverability of Minimum Alternate Tax
{MAT) Credit

As at 31 March 2021, the Holding Company
has recognised Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
credit amounting ¥ 77.65 crores, within
deferred tax assets. On that date, the Holding
Company also has unabsorbed depreciation
amounting to ¥ 1,662.15 crores.

The recognition of a deferred tax asset in the
form of MAT credit is based on the
management's estimate of taxable and
accounting profits in future, which are
underpinned by the Holding Company’s price
assumptions and business plans, and tax
adjustments required to be made in the
taxable profit computations, as per the
provisions of income-tax Act, 1961 (IT Act).
Estimating recoverability of MAT credit also
requires significant judgments, including the
timing of rewersals of unabsorbed
depreciation.

Considering the materiality of the amounts
inolved and inherent subjectivity requiring
significant  judgment  inwhed in the
determination "~ of utilization of MAT credit
through estimation of future taxable profits,
this area was considered to be of most
significance to the audit and determined fo be
a key audit matter for current year's audit.

Our procedures in relation to assessment of

MAT credit recognised as at reporting date

included, but were not limited to, the following:

e Obtained and updated our understanding
of the management's process of
computation of future accounting and
taxable profits of the Holding Company,
and expected utilization of available MAT
credit within specified time period as per
provisions of the [T Act;

e Evaluated the design of and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls around
the preparation of underlying business
plans, future taxable profit computation,
and assessment of recognition of MAT
credit at year end;

« Reconciled the business results projections
to the future business plans approved by
the Holding Company’s board of directors;

s Challenged the management's
assessment of undeflying assumptions
used for the business results projections
including expected capacity expansion and
utilisation, implied growth rates and
expected prices considering evidence
available to support these assumptions and
our understanding of the business;

o Tested the growth rates used in the
forecast by comparing them to past trends
and to economic and industry forecasts
where appropriate including the impact of
COVID-19 pandemic,

Charlared Accountants.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont'd}

« Performed independent sensitivity analysis
in respect of the key assumptions such as
growth rates to ensure there was sufficient
headroom with respect to the estimation
uncertainty impact of such assumptions on
the timing of rewersal of unabsorbed
depreciation and utilisation of MAT credit;

« Tested the computations of future taxable
profits, including testing of the adjustments
made in such computations with respect to
tax-allowed and tax-disallowed items, other
tax rebates and deductions available to the
Holding Company, and tested the
computation of MAT liability in such future
years, in accordance with the provisions of
the IT Act;

o Evaluated the historical accuracy of the
estimates made in the prior periods with
respect to business projections and
aforesaid tax computations;

o Tested the mathematical accuracy of
management's  projections and  tax
computations;

e Based on aforesaid computations,
assessed the  appropriateness of
management's estimate of likelihood of
utilization of MAT credit within the time
period specified and in accordance with the
provisions of the IT Act;

s Engaged the intemal tax experts to assess
the accuracy of MAT credit recognised in
the consolidated financial statements;

e FEvaluated the appropriateness  and
adequacy of the disclosures related fo
MAT credit in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the consofidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated.

Chariered Accountants




" Walker Chandiok &CoLLP

10.

11.

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont'd}

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of
Directors Is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered
necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, In terms of the
provisions of the Act, the respective Board of Directors/ management of the companies included in the
Group and its associate companies covered under the Actare responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair vew and are free from material
misstatement, whether due tofraud orerror. These financial statements hawe been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and
of its associates fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(jl,j,ofﬁ1he Act, we are also
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd)

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls;

e Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern;

» Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within
the Group, and its associates, to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supendsion and performance of the audit of financial statements of
such entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the financial statements, which have been audited by the other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supenision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance fegarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adwerse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

15.We did not audit the financial statements of five subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total

Chartered Accountants

assets of ¥ 721.87 crores and net assets of ¥ 122.29 crores as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of
% 817.98 crores and het cash inflows amounting to ¥ 2.84 crores for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financiat statements also include
the Group's share of net profit {including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 5.47 crores for the year
ended 31 March 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three
associates, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
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Independant Auditor's Repott to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the yearended 31 March 2021 {cont'd)

section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, are hased
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries and associates, four subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other
auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The
Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located
outside India from accounting principies generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Another auditor has audited these conversion adjustments made
by the Holding Company’s management for one of the subsidiaries and for the remaining
aforementioned subsidiaries, we have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding
Company's management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India, are based on the report of cther
auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and
audited by us and the other auditor.

Our opinion above on the consalidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our refiance on
the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, referred toin paragraph 15, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and
associates, we report that the Holding Company and two associate companies covered under the Act
paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule \/ to the Act. Further, we report that the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to one associate company cowered
under the Act, since such company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act
and that one subsidiary company covered under the Act has not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable
in respect of the aforementioned associate company and subsidiary company.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and associates, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we hawe sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements; -

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

¢) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements,

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary company and associate companies covered under the Act, none of the
directors of the Group companies and its associate companies cowered under the Act, are
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g)

disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate companies covered under
the Act, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure 1I'; and

with respect to the other maiters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accardance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates:

the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates as detailed in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements;

the Group and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021;

there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and
associate companies during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

the disclosure reguirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not
relevant to these consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Rajni Mundra
Partner

Membership No.: 058644
UDIN: 21058644AAAACEB47

Place: New Deihi
Date: 14 May 2021
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Annexure | to the independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Jindal Stainless Limited on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure |

List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Sfatements

S. No. [ Name Relationship
1 -PT. Jindal Stainless Indonesia Subsidiary
2 Jindal Stainless FZE Subsidiary
3 JSL Group Holding Pte. Limited Subsidiary
4 lberjindal, S.L. Subsidiary
5 Jindal Stainless Park Limited Subsidiary
6 Jindal United Steel Limited Associate
7 Jindal Coke Limited Associate
8 Jindal Stainless Corporate Management Senice Private Limited Associate

(This space has been infentionally feft blank)
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Jindal
Stainless Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure Ll

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Jindal Stainless Limited ('the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as ‘the Group') and its associates as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary company and its associate companies, which are companies covered under the Act, as
at that date.

Responsibilities of Managementand Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate
companies, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate companies, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAl prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internai financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal contra! based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jindal
Stainless Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(cont’d)

We believe that the audit evidence we hawe obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate companies
as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference tofinancial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provde reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to efror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies ar procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our oplnion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies and
associate companies, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate companies,
which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating efiectively as at
31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAl .

Other Mafter

We did not audit the internal financiat controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company covered under the Act, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of ¥ 0.05 crores and net assets of ¥ 0.03 crores as at 31 March 2021,
total revenues of ¥ nil and niet cash outflows amounting to  nil crore (rounded off) for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Group's share of net profit {including other comprehensive income) of
F 5.47 crores for the year ended 31 March 2021, in respect of three associate companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, whose internal - financial controls with reference to financial
statements have not been audited by us. The internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company and associate companies have been
audited by other auditors whose reports have been fumished to us by the management and our
report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements for the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate
companies, as aforesaid, under section 143(3)(i} of the Actin so far as it relates to such subsidiary
company and associate companies is based solely on the reports_o auditors of such companies.




* Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Jindal
Stainless Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{cont'd}

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by
and on the reports of the other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Roe(‘,_,; ™M

Rajni NMundra
Partner

Membership No.: 058644
UDIN: 21058644AAAACEBATY

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 May 2021

Chartered Accouniants



JINDAL STAINLESS I IMITED
Consolidated Balance Slieet as ar 31 Macch 2025
(All amounie in T crores, unless othierwise s1ated)

Note Asat Asay
31 dJarch 2021 31 hlarch 2020
ASSETS
Non-cumrent asseis
Prpeny, plant and cquipment 2 582806 6,144.97
Capitdl work-in-progress 24 3273 1258
Goodwill 0.1z 012
Otherintangible assets 3 2723 3200
Ingangible assets under evelapmezt 34 550 240
Investment accouned For uring equity method 4 4318 310.08
Finuncial assets
Invesanenis 1A Hzol 13590
Loans 5 106.37 103.26
Other Rnancial assets 6 0.75 224
Taconse-ax assets {nel) 7 1186 2646
Oihee non-curren; assels L 125,16 kEN:]
Curremi asse1s
Iaveniorsies 2 2,780.60 2,716.98
Financial pssers
Investments {A 0.58 253
Trade ceccivables 10 93389 705.19
Cash and cash equivalents 1 T3 4021
Dunk balnces vther than carh and cash equivalens 12 38935 2843
Loans 5 .20 547
Other fnancial assels 6 £8.32 7832
Onher curmnt assels 3 207.62 22745
Toiel 10,734 51 10,677.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capil i) 9795 9745
Orther equiry 14 3,107.68 2,619.79
Non-conteolling interest 49 1325 1302
LIABILITIES
Non-current llabilities
Financial liabiities
Romowings (L] 2,593.08 2,71557
Other Gnanciyl liabikties 16 11075 10240
Provisiony - 17 15.83 1689
Deferred Lax ligbilides {pet) 18 J0L.03 19030
Other nan-curcend Kabilites 19 27319 32405
Cumrent fiabifities
Tinancial Liabilities
Bomowings 20 3164 643,73
Trade payalies
Torl ourstanding dues (o micro enteeprses and small enterprises 21 nz7 )
Totl ovisanding dues of creditars other than micro caterpoises and small enerprises 21 251412 257230
Other Gnancial lisbilities 16 71792 1275
Current rax lishilities (nei) 2 0.89 k)
Other curent lisbilides 19 18970 248.40
Provisiens 17 R 089
Total 10,734 .51 10,672.54
Summary of significant accouniing policies 1
The suminacy of significant accounting poficies and ather explanuory informagon are an integral part of theae consolidated financial siatements.
This is the Consolidaled Balince Sheer mierred to in our pare of even date. Forand an belglf of the Boasd of Directors

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Abhyuday Jindal
Chaclered Accountants Maniging Dicector Whol€ Time Directér
TRN 001076 /NS00013 DIIN: 072090474 DN U7H2532
LS
Roy. -
| o -—
Rajni Mundm WNavneer Raghuvanshi
Partncr

Company Secretary
Aembership No.s 05806+

Pluce: New Delhi
Durer 14 day 2021




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Consolidated S1aiemect of Profiy and Loss for the year ended 31 harch 2921
(All amounis In T erores, unless otherwise alared)

Nowe Yeac ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Marclh 2020
INCOME
Revenue from operations 23 12,18846 12950.97
Other income 2] -0.90 32.89
‘Tatal 12,22536 12,990.76
EXPENSES
Cost of malerials consumed TH819 B217.86
Purchases of stock-in-trade 23695 48786
Changes in inven taries of finished goods, work in progress wul stock-in-teade 25 3.6+ {12223
Employee benefils expease 26 172.87 204.53
Finance costs 27 480.08 585.33
Drepreciation and amothisation expenses 28 402,96 425.16
Other expenses 20 277162 302837
Total E1,647 31 12,822.08
Profil belgre exceplignal iiems, 1ax and shere of profit/(lnas) of inveatmenis accounied for using equiry method 362.05 168.68
Share of profit/ (loss) of investments accounted for using equity method 521 (7.86)
Profit hefore excepdonal ilems and 1ax 587.26 160.82
Exceplional items 7 10241 44+
Frolit befoce lax 489.67 165.26
Tax expensc i)
Curren tax 0.7 L2G
Defeered tac 26921 7243
Taxes in relation to carlier yrars 0.25 18.95
‘Toinl 1ax expenses 27021 9264
Nel profit for the year 419.46 72,62
Ouier comprehensive income
frems that will not be reclassified to profitor loss
Re-mensyrements of defined employee henefit plans 366 L1y
Income-tax cffect on above 0.83) 0.38
Share of other comprehensive income of invesunents accounted for using equity method 0.26 (0.10)
Irems that will be reclassified to profit oc loss
Exchange difference in cranslating the financial slatemenls of forcign operalion 0.50 8.16
Tncome-tax effect on above - -
Tatal other comprehenslve income .59 2.4
‘Toral comprehensive income lor the year 423.05 79.96
Prafic for the year auribulable 10
Owners of the Company 419.23 7132
Non-controlling interest 023 L1
Qiher comprehensive Income lor the year auribuiable 10
Owners of the Company 1.59 734
Non-conimiling interest - -
Toval comprehensive income for the year aturibulable o:
QOwners of the Company 422.62 18,56
Non-conirolling inlercst 0.23 130
Eamings per share (in ) 2
Basic 4.60 148
Diluted aJa 148
Summary of significanr accounuing policies 1
The summary of significant accounting policies and other esplanatory information arc an integral part of these consolidated fnancial statements.
This is he Consalidated Staterent of Profit and Loss referred to in our repart of even date. For and on behalf of the Doard of Direciors

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Abhyuday Jindal
Charternd Arcountanrs
FRN 001076N/ N3N0 12

Managinpg Directoe
DIN: 07290474

DIN: 07302332

Raj.. M
nani:édm

Paciner
Membezshig No.: 0586-H

P
s ©
Nawmneel Raghuvanshi
Company Secrerary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 May 2021
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Caonsolidated Cash Flow Stalement for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless oiherwise stated)

Pacticulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit betore tax G89.67 [65.26
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and mnontisation expenses 402.96 425.16
Profit ou disposal of propeety, plant and equipment {ner) 0.33) 0.36)
[uterest mcome on investments (3.97) (2.88)
Liabllity ne longer required, written back 276} (63.67)
Amortisation of deferred revenue (12.63) (12.66}
Iuterest income on financial assets measured ar amortised cost (1.27) (La
Unwinding of discount on Gnancial assets measured at amortised cost 199 11.90
Bad debts written off and allowance for expecled credit loss 17.08 194
Interest income on fived deposits, receivables and income tax refund (16.15) {18.23)
Net unrealised foreign exchange {gain)/loss (72.55) B2.79
Finance costs 480.08 585.53
Share of (profit)/loss from associates {5.21) 786
Operating prolit belore working capital changes 1,476.89 1,18143
Movement in working capital
Trade receivables (26:4.36) 2417
Inventories (49.62) (32437
Other financial assets 10z 94.69)
Other assets 20.22 (33.52)
Trde payables 9.66 147.10
Other financial linbilities 77.83 70.30
Other liabilities (88.28) (1642)
Provigions 395 1.51
Cash flow from operating aclivities post working capital changes 1,206.31 1,175.51
Tncome- tax paid {net of refund) 1146 4.85
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,307.77 1,180.36
Cash flow [rom invesiing aclivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and mrangible assets (167.75) (196.82)
(including capilal work in progress and intangible assets under development)
Praceeds trom disposal of property, plant and cquipment 5.29 2224
Interest received 17.19 7.93
Proceeds from sale of investment 231
Invesnnent in deposits with banks (nery (9.02) (21.13)
Net cash used in investing activities (1) (151.98) (187.78)
Cash flow [rom financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares/warmnts 5372 28.58
Repayment of short teom borrowing (ner) (131.62) (100.95)
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,006.93) {1,212.87)
Proceeds from long-tean borrowings 31043 800.00
Payment of lease liability (3.93) o)
Tnterest paid (340.33) {501.52)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (1,118.64) (990.77)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 32.15 1,81
Cash and cash equivalenss at the beginming of the year (refer nore 11} d0.21 36.33
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of Lhe year {refer note 11) 77.37 40.21
Foreign curency tmanslation (gain)/loss on cash and cash equivalents 0.01) (2.07)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 37.15 1.81

Summary of significant accounting policies

The summary of significant accounting policies and other explinatory information are an integral pact of these consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement reflecsed Lo in aur reporl of even date.
For aud on behal

IFor Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Afhyuday Jindal T
Chartered Accountanis NakAging Director Whe
FRN 001074N/N500013 DI DIN: 07302532

' ~ Q
-—
Rajni ndra
Mavnect Raghuvanshi
Chief Financial Officer Campany Secretary

Partuer
Membership Ne.: 058644

Place: New Delhi
Daie: 14 May 2021
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JINDAL STATNLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information to consolidated financial stalements (or the year ended 31 Macch 2021
(All amounis in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

3 Other intangible assels

Particulars . Compauter software  Mining development Total
expense (siripping
cosl)

Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2019 48.63 14,38 63.01
Additions 11,21 - 21
Translation difference 0.05 - 0.05
As al 31 March 2020 59.89 14.38 74.27
Addinons 6.62 - 6.62
Trnshtion diffecence 0.01 - 0.0
As at 31 March 2021 66,52 14.38 80.90

Accumulated amartisation

As at 01 April 2019 21.26 12,33 3359
Aincrtisation charge 785 0.74 8.59
As at 31 March 2020 29.11 13.07 4218
Amochsation charpe 1076 0.74 1150
As al 31 March 2021 39.87 13.81 53.68

Nel carrying amount
As at 31 March 2020 30,78 131 3209
As al 31 March 2021 26.66 0.57 27.23

3A  The Group has intangible assets under development amaunting 1o ¥ 5.50 crores as at 31 March 2021 (previous year: ¥ 2.40 erores)

(Thix spete har been iutentionelly &ff blank)
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JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of sigaificant sccounting policies acd other explanalory information to consolidated financial starements for the year cuded 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in ¥ erores, unless oihenvise stated)

5

=Y

~

-3

=

Loans Non-current Current
As at Asau As al Asat
31 March 2021 31 Mazch 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Loans receivahles considered good, unsecured
Secudty deposits 28.06 26.57 3.20 A7
Other loans* 7831 78.69 - -
Total 106.37 105.20 120 5.17
* inclutles loan to related pacty
Refer note 47 for disclasure of it vithies in respect of Enancial assets measured ar amonised cost and assessment of expected credic losses.
Otleer financial asgers Non-curcent Currenl
Asat Ag ac Asat As ac
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Masch 2021 31 March 2020
Considered good, unsecuced
Desivative zsser (o reign exchange forward conteacts) - - 4133 30.83
Bank deposits with remaining manarity of moce than 12 months * 0.7 234 - -
Expor benefit ceceivables - - .07 26.03
Creher receivables - - 174 2146
Toral 476 2.4 6832 78.32
—
+ T 0,76 crures (previous year T 2.24 crores) is under lien with banks.
Refer note H for information on other financial assets pledged as security by the Group.
Refer note 47 Tor disclosure of fir values in respece of Gnancial assers mensured at amortised cost andl assessiment of expecred credic losses.
Income-rax assels (net) MNon-curreni
As al As at
31 March 2021 3L March 2020
Prepaid caxes [net of provision for Lax] 11-86 2646
Tolal 14.86 2646
Other assets Non-curzent Current
As ar As aL As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Capinal advinces 70.20 18.90
Prepaid expenses 649 7.98 - -
Adtances to vendors 10.00 - 135.64 106.95
Dalances with smutory authorities 3847 48.86 70.97 117.25
Orhec assets - - 1oL 335
Total 125.16 75.14 207,62 227.45
Inveniories Agat Asat
31 Mazrch 2021 31 Macch 2020
Ruw atcrials [ including goods-in-trnsic T-H0.89 crores (previous year T 415.04 crores)] * 266.93 12406
Work-in-progress 1,022.30 1,010.93
Finished goods 590.56 T13.57
Stock-in-trde 145 536
Srore and spaces | lncluding goods-in-insic T 10.23 crores (provious yeir T 1837 cores)] 207.31 285.07
Total 2,788.60 2,738.98
e

» Wirite-downs of inventorics to net realisable vilue on account of slow moving and obsolete items amounted to T il ceores (31 March 2020 : T 3.94 ceores). These were recognized as :in expense duding the year and
were included in 'cost of marezil consume in Starement of Profit and Loss. The carrying value of such iavenmnes carsied at Gir value less costs ta sell imounts © T 141 crores (31 Mazch 2020 : T 1143 croces }

Refer note 44 and 15 for information on inventories pledged as secusity by the Group.

Trade receivalles

Trade receivables considered good, unsecured
Trade receivables - credit impaiced

Total

Less : Loss allowance

Taoial

Refer note 47 (C. Ly(b) (i) foc detils of expected credit loss for trade receivables undec simplified approch
Tefer nate 47 for Bsclosure of fair wihues in respect of fnancial assers measuced at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses.
Refer note +4 and 15 for information on teade reveivables pledged as security by the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

Dalnces with banks

Balances with banks in loreign cucrency

Bank deposics with original matusiry of less than three months *
Cheques an hand

Casl: o hand

Tatal

* T 445 crores (previous year T 42 crores) is under lien with baks. The Holding Company has alse created hank deposit of ¥ nil {previous year % 080 crores) Tor Debenture Redemption Reserve.

Refor note 47 lor disclosuce of fic values in respect of Gnancial assers measuced at amortised cost and nssessment of expected credit losses.
Refer aote 44 [oc infarmation on cash and cash equivalens pledged as security by the Group.

Oiher bank balances

Bank deposits with original maturity o f more than three manth but cesidual macicy of less tan ovelve months®
Total

* 3216 crores (previous year T 22,05 ceores) s under lien willl banks. The Helding Company has also ceeated bank deposit of % uil (previous year T 6,40 crores) [oc Debenture Redemption Reserve.

Tefer noste 47 for disclosure of fir valuos in respsct of financial assos measured at amorised rust and assessment of expected credit losses.

Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
931.89 F03.19
23.63 11.06
959,54 TL6.25
(25.65) (1L.06)
933.89 705.19
Asal Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
52.05 T
0.35 002
9.36 552
13.52 740
0.09 .16
Ti.37 40.21
Asal As at
31 Mazch 2021 31 March 2020
3395 2845
38.95 2345




JINDAL STATNLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanalory information to consolidated financial statements lor the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in T crores, muless olherwise stated)
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Equily share capital As at Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Authoriscd
605,000,000 (previous year 6)5,000,000) Equiry shares of T 2 each 12..00 121.0¢
170,000,000 (previous year 170,000,000) Preference shares of T2 each 34.00 3H.00
155.00 155.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
487,234,600 (previous year 487,234,600) Equity shaces of T 2 each fully paid up 9743 9745
9745 97.45
Reconciliation of the number ol equity shiares ouislanding at the beginning and al the end of the reporiing year As at As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. of shares Mo, ol shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the yeat 487,234,600 479,221,660
Shares issued during the year
Allotment of equity shares on prefecential basis (refer note () below} - 8,012,940
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 487,234,600 487,234,600
During the year ended 31 Mazch 2021, the Holding Company allotted nil equity shaces {previous year 8,012,940 } baving face value of € 2 each o 4 promoter proup entity (JSL Limited} on
prefecential basis 41 a price of nil (previous year € 33.65, including premium of T 33.65 per share), aggregating to nil {previous year T 28.57 crores)-
As on 31 March 2021, 8,802,167 Glubak Depository Shates (GDSs) (previous year 8,802,167 GDSs) with 17,604,334 underdying equity shares (previous year 17,604,3H equity shares) were
oustanding. Each GDS represents 2 underlying equity shares of the Holding Company.
Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Folding Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 2 per share. Each sharebolder is cligible for one vote pee equity shace held [other than the shares
represented by Regulation S Global Depository Shares {the “GNSs”) issued by the Holding Company whose voling rights are subject to certain conditions and procedure as prescribed
under the Regulation S Deposit Agreancnt]. The Hokling Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Dircctors is subjecl to the
appzoval of the shaceholders in the ensuing Annual Geaeeal Meeting and also has equal cight in distribucion of profit/surplus i proportion 1 the numbec of equity shares held by the
sharcholders.
Equity shares in the Holding Company heid by each shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares are ag under:
Name of the sharcholder As al Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
No. ol equity % helding Na. of equily Y% holding
shares shares
Jiudal Srainless (Flisaz) Limited 168,284,309 34.54 168,284,309 34.54
JSL Overseas Holding Limited 70,995,424 14.57 70,995424 14.57
Kolak Special Sinations Fund 28,376,673 5.82 27,481,027 3.04
During the five years immediately preceding 31 March 2021, in the year ended 31 March 2017, dhe Holding Company issued 168,284,309 equity shares 1o Jindal Stinless (Flisar) Linvited
pursuant to the composite scheme of arrangement referred o in note (D). In the aforementioned period of five years, the Holding Company has neither allotted any bonus shaces nor
have any shares been bought back.
Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares

During the year ended 31 Maech 2018, the Holding Company had allolted 142,820,637 9.01% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares having face value of T 2 each
(“OCRPS™ to the lendess of the Holding Company upon conversion of the Funded Interest Teem Loan 1 and the Funded Intecest Term Loaa 11 at a price of T 39.10 (including premium
of € 37.10) per OCRPS agpregating to ¥ 53847 crorcs, on the terms as approved by the Board of Directars of the Holding Company (Refer note 15 and 38).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Holding Company had redeemed the aforementioned OCRPS issucd 10 the lenders at a price of T 39.10/- per share (includiag premium of T
37.10/- per shace) agpgregating 1o ¥ 55847 crores.

{This spase has been intentionally &t blank)




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accoundng policies and other explanatory information w consolidmed financial staicments for the year eaded 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

14 Odber equity

A Amalgamarion rescrve
“Fhis reserve was created in accordance with an approved schieme of amajgarntion between Jindal Stainless Lintited, Austenitic Creadons Prt Limited and J-Inox Crearions Dt Limited
with effect from ! Apnl 2003.

Pacdenlars Year ended Year ended

34 Macch 2021 31 March 2020
Dalance at the beginning of the year Lz 1.22
Balance at the end of the ycar 1.22

B Poreign currency moneiary items wanslation difference acconat
This reserve represents unamortised foreign esclange differences arfsing on translation ol long-term [oreign cutrency menetary items,

Partculars ‘Year ended Year ended

31 Macch 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year (11.33) {15.75}
Add: Accumulated duding the year 0.24) (10.09)
Less ; Amortised during the year L1.57 14.51
Balance at the end of the year - (1L.33)

C  Dehenture redemption reserve
During the yeac ended 31 March 2021, the amount standing to the credit of Debentuce Redemption Resecve has been transterred to retwined carnings since the debeatures have been

redeemed
Pariculars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at Lhe beginning of the yeur 2442 32.07
Less :'I'mnsferced during the year 1o eetuined earnings 24.42 7.65
Balance at the end of the year - 2442
D Securities premium
Represents the amount received in sxcess of pac value of securitics.
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Dalance ar the beginning of the year 1,080.88 1,053.91
Add - Securities premium seceived on issue of equity shares on preferential basis - 2697
Balance at the end of the year 1,080.88 1,080.88

E Capilal redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve ropresents reserves creared as pec provisions of section 80 of the crstwhile Companles Act, 1936 on redemprion of 10.3% Redeemable Cumulative Non
Convertible Preference Shases in the financial year 2003-04.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
3[ Macch 2021 31 March 2020

Dalance at the heginning of the year 20.00 20.00

Dalance at the end of the year 20.00 20.00

F Rewmined eamings
Represents the undistribured surphss of the Group and includes the amount perainiog 1o revaluation of property, plant and
equipment peior 1o the Ind AS transition date-

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,500.30 1,416.29
Add: Profit lor the year 419.23 )
Add : Re-measurements of delined employee benetit plans (net of tax) 2.8 0.7%
Add: Transier from debenture redemption resecve 442 1.65
Add: Deferced rax liability on revaluation roserve reversed - 14.76
Add: Others 0.02 -
Balance at the end of the year £,955.80 1,609.30

G Foreign currency translation reserve

“T'his represents amount acising due to foreign currency translation differences while consolidating foceign operations
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 3L March 2020
Balance ar the beginning of the year (4.31) (12.47)
Add : Other comprelensive income for the yeac (aet of ras) 0.50 8.14

Balance at the end of the year (3.80) (4.31)




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanaiory information 1o consolidared financial statenems for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in ¥ crores, nnless otherwise stated)

H Other compreliensive income - share of associntes

Pardculars Year ended Year caded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.39) 029)
Add : Other comprehensive income [og the year (net of rax) 0.26 {0.10)
Balance at the end of the year {0.13) (0.39)
I Money received against share warranls

Represents amount received towards subscription of compulsorly convectible share warrnts*
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Dalance at the beginning of the vear -
Add: Subscription amount towards compulsorily convertinle share wacsants 5312 -
Balance at the ¢ad of the year 53.72 -

Toul of ether equity 3,186.72 2,698.83

* On 29 Seprember 2020, the Holding Company has issued and allotred 38,260,868 number of Convertible Equity Warants of T 2 each, ar @ price of T 42,55, which includes a premium ol T 40.55 per
convertible equity wacrants, as determined in accordance with the provisians of the Securities and Exchange Bourd of India {Issue of Capital and Dhsclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, alter receipt
of subsceiption money @ 33% of the issue price ie, T 14.04 per wartant (including paid up amount of ¥ 0.66 per warmns) to Viruous Tradecop Private imited, a promoler group enlity and Kotk
Special Situations Fund, 4n Alternate Investment Fund and a nion-promotec entity, on preferential basis, 1o augment the cash flows of the Holding Company for utilizalion towards meeting its Tiabilities,
strengthening long term working capilal and other general corporte purposes. The Relevant Date for the purpose of determination of minimum prce for the issue and allotment of convertible equity
warants a5 mentioned above was 18 August 2020, being the date 30 days prior to the date of this extra-owdinacy genecl meeting.

(This space bis been intentiotelly &Lff bhink)




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accaunting policies and other cxplanarery information to consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in T crores, unless atherwise stated)

15 Berrowings Non-current
As at As ar
31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
I Secured
A Debentures
(i) Redeemable non-convertible debentures 400.00 497.68
400.00 497,68

B 'Term loans

(i} From banks
Rupee term loans 1,030,735 1,468.22
Foreign currency loans - 276.34

(ii} From others (Financial institution)

Rupee term loans 98.53 48,30
1,130.28 1,842.86

C  Funded interest term loans
From others - 16.63
- 16.63
Total 1,530.28 2,357.17

II Unsecured

A Termloan 60+ -

B lnter corponte deposits from related party 1,050.00 90000
Total 1,110.44 900.00
Less : Amount disclosed under the hend other financial liabilities- current (Refer note 16) +7.64 541.60
Toral 2,593.08 2,715.57

TRefer note 47 for disclosure of faic values in respect of financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost and analysis of their mamrity peofile.

I

=

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
borrowings borrowings borrowings borrowings
(Refer nate 20)* (Refer note 20)*

Opening balance 3,257.17 643.73 3,644.73 74299
Cagh flows
Repayment {1,006.93) (131.62) {1,21287) (180.95)
Proceeds 310.45 - 800.00 -
Non cash:
Momtorum interest converted into loan 78.11 - . _
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss on foreign cucrency loans (2.48) 0.47) 2161 370
Amortisation of tmnsaction costs in respect of financial liabilities carcied at amortised cost 440 - 370 -
Closing balance 2,640.72 513.64 3,257.17 645.73

* Movement in short teem bosrowings is presented on net basis

(Thiés spare bas been tntentionelly iff blente }




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to consolidated Fnancial statements for the year ended 3f March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise staled)
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Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Secured borrowings
Debentures

Redeemable non-converiible debentures 400.00 40K.00
Redeemable in quarterly installments of:

“Ranging from  13.30 crores to T 13.40 crores during 2022-23 {theee installments, first installment falling due on 31 July 2022

- T15.00 crores each during 2023-24 (four installments)

- 720 00 crores each during 2024425 {four installments)

- T 25.00 croces each during 2025-26 (fouc installments)

- ¥ 30,00 crores each during 2026-27 (four instaliments, last installment failing due an 31 Jaauary 2027)

Secured by:

- first pani-passu chazge by way of mertgnge of the Holding Compary's immovable properties and hypothecation of movable fixed
assets both present and fumres

- second pasi-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/ or pledge of cucrent assets namely finished goods, mw matedals, wock-in
-progress, consumable stores and spaces, book debis and bills ceceivable, both present and Future. Also, refer note VI for details of
additional securities

Redeemable non-convertible debentuces® - 97.68
Fully redeemed during the curcent financial year

Total - Debentures 400,00 497,68

*At its meeting held on 21 Januacy 2021, the sub-committee of the Boasd of Directors of the Holding Company had considered and approved eardy redemption of 2,500 Redeemable
non- convertible debeniures (secuced) of face value T 010 crores each, which were listed on BSE Limited, having an outstanding balance of ¥ 52.08 crores which has been duly remitted
and fully redeemed within the quarter ended 31 March 2021,

Term loans

Rupee term loan $33.74 85150
Repayable in quarterly installments of:

- Ranging from  0.22 crores to T 0.33 crores each during 2021-22 (four installments)

- Ranging from T 033 croses to T 044 crores each durag 2022-23 (four installments)

- T 19 46 croces each during 2023-24 {four insmllments)

- Ranging from ¥ 28.99 crores to ¥ 40.50 crores each during 2024-25 (four installments)

- Ranging Ecom ¥ 40.50 crores to  45.56 crores each ducing 2025-26 (four installments)

- Ranging from ¥ 43.23 crores to I 47.07 crores ench during 2026-27 (four installments)

- Thereafter ¥ 37.20 crores on 30 fune 2027 and ¥ 28.47 erores on 30 September 2027

Sceured by:

- first pari-passu charge by way of mortgage of the Holding Company's immovable propesties and hypothecation of movable Eixed
assels both present and future and

- second pact-passu charge by way of hypethecation and/or pledge of current assets namely Enished goods, raw matenals, work-in-
progress, consumable stores and spaces, book debts and bills receivable, both present and future. Also, tefer note VI tor details of
additional securities

Rupee term loan 415.66 400.00
Redeemable in quarterdy installments of:

- 2 10.39 crores during 2021-22 (bwo installments)

- Ranging from T 10.39 ccores to ¥ 20.78 crores each during 2022-23 {four installments}

- ¥ 20.78 croces cach during 2023-24 (four installments)

- Ranging from T 18.70 crores to T 20.78 crores each during 2024-25 (four installments)

- Ranging from ¥ 17.67 crores to T 18.70 crores each during 2025-26 (four installments)

- Ranging from ¥ 17.67 crores to ¥ 31.17 crores each during 2026-27 (four installments)

Secured by:

- first pari-passu charge by way of morigage of the Holding Company's immovable propecties and hypothecation of movable fixed
assets both present and futage

- second paci-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/or pledge of current assets namely finished goods, mw materils, work-in -
progress, consumable stores and spaces, book debes and bills receivable, both preseat and future. Also, refer note VI for details of
additional securitics

Rupee term loan - 32748
Fully repaid during the current financial year




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infonnation to consolidated financial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in T ¢rores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{vii) Rupee tecm loan 10000 -
Repayable in quarterly installments of
- T 417 cromes each first installment falling due on 30 September 2022 and last installment falling due on 30 June 2027 (24 equal
installments)
Secuged by:
- first pari-passu charge by way of modgage of the Holding Company's immovable properties and hypothecation of movable fixed
assets both present and future and
- second pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation and/or pledge of cusrent assets namely finished goods, caw mateonls, work-in-
progress, consumable stores and spares, book debts and bills receivable, both present and future. Also, refec note VI for details of
additional securities
(viiy Foreign currency loan - 276,34
Fully repaid during the current fiinancial year
Total 1,149.40 1,855.32
Less: Unamortised portion of upfront fecs and tmansaction costs 19.12 12.46
Total - Rupee term loans 1,130.28 1,842.86
C Funded interest term loans
Funded interest rerm loans - 16.63
Fully repaid ducing the current financial year
Total - Funded interest term loans - 19.40
Total - Secured 1,530.28 2,359.94

The above term loans bear 1 Roating cate of intecest linked with State Bank of India Macginal Cost of Funds based Lending Rate or benchmack of respective baaks plus applicable

speead mnging from 20 basis poiats to 305 basis points.

V  Unsecured
A Teom loan (Commercial)
Repayable in monthly instllments of
- Ranging from % 0.24 croces to T 0.71 crores each during 2021-22 (monthly installments)
- Ranging from % 0.71 crores to ¥ 0.72 erores each ducing 2022-23 (monthly installments)
- Ranging from T 0,72 crores to ¥0.73 croces each during 2023-24 (monthly installments)
- Raaging from % (.73 crores to ¥ 0.75 crores each during 2024-25 (monthly mstallments)
- Ranging from ¥ 0.09 crores to T 0.75 crores each during 2025-26 (monthly installment, last installment
[alling due on 31 July 2025)

Term loan (Commercial)

Repayable in monthly installments of

- Ranging from % 1.55 crores to T 1.57 crores each during 2021-22 (four installments)
- Ranging from ¥ 1.58 crores 1o T 160 crores each during 2022-23 (four installments)
- Ranging from ¥ 1.61 crores to ¥ 1 63 crores cach during 2023-2+4 (four mstallments)
- Ranging from ¥ 164 crores to ¥ 1.67 crores cach during 2024-25 (four installments}

B Inter corporate deposits from related pacty
Repayable in
one or more installments by 31 March 2023 or such other terms as may be mutually agreed between the Helding Company and
Jindal Stainless (Hisar} Limited,

Tatal - Unsecured

3472 -
25.72 -
1,050.00 .00
1,084.72 900.00

The inter corpoate deposit from the relared party is also a variable rate faciliry which is subject to changes as notified by lender from time 10 time in accordance with prevailing market

interest cates. As at 31 Macch 2021, the aforementioned deposits carey rate of interest of [0%.

VI Additional securities
Certin eredir facilities / loans are also secured by the following as well as also cross referred in TV(A,B and C) respeciively:

a. Unconditonal and irrevocable personal puamniee of Mr. Raran Jindal;
b, Unconditional and irrevacable corporie guamatee of Jiadal Sminless {Hisar) Limired;
¢. Pari-passu pledge of 197,701,936 equiry shares held in the Holdmg Company by promoter group companics,
d. Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of promoter group companies 1o the extend of equity shaces (93,384,215 equity shaces) ;
¢. Pledge over shares of the entities as listed below:
= II" Jindal Stainless Indonesia
* JSL Stainless FZE
» J5L Group Holdings Pie, Limited
* Iberjindal 5.1
* Jindal Coke Limired
+ Jindal United Steel Limited




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information 10 consolidated financlal swatements for Lhe year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounis in T crores, unless othenwise suated)

16 Other financial liabilities Noo-cnrreni Cuzrenl
As at Asal As at Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2420 31 March 2021 3) Macch 2020
Cuceent muturities of long wwem borrowings - - +7.64 54160
Interest acerued - - 2811 182,40
Capiral creditors - - 3157 19.97
Secusity deposits 3260 29.12 15.03 1347
Unpaid mamed depasits and interest accrued thercon - - .19 0.20
Derivative liability - - 727 6479
Lense linbilicy 69.28 73.28 6.13 136
Other cutstanding finaneial liabilides 8.87 - 36204 218.56
Toial 110,75 102.40 1193 1,042.75
Refer note A7 for disclosure of fair vakues in espect of financial labifities measured at amartised cost and analysis of theit matucty profile.
17 Provisions Mon-current Current
As at As at Asal Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provision for employes benafits {refer note 40) 15.83 16.89 2.24 089
Total 15.83 16.89 2.74 0.29
18 Dreferred cax liabilites (net) As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred rax liability adsing cn account of
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,236.97 124021
Financial assets and financial liabiliies measured ac amorised cose 2%6.63 LLA9
Tolal deferred iax Hability 1,263.60 1,251.70
Deferred tax asseis arslng on account of
Bxpenses deductible on payment 49.07 3415
Allowance for expected credir losses 33.88 05
[ease liabiliry 26.44 713
Brought forwand loss/unabscrbed depreciation 607.54 889.05
Minimum alternate £y credic encitlement 77.65 7163
Qthers 8.2 6.37
Total deferred rax asset 302.57 1,060.40
Deferred lax labilides (net) 46103 190.30
19 Other liabilitles Non-¢ufrent Current
Agar As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Macch 2021 31 Masch 2020
Advance [rom customers - - B0.§2 118.96
DLeferred revenue 24623 258.80 1263 1263
Orher ourstanding liabilides * 3206 65.19 96.25 96.81
Taral 279.19 324,03 189.70 248.40
*Includes smwtocy dues
20 Borcowings (current) Asar Asan

Secured
Workmg capiral facilities from bank

Unsecored
Working capinal facilities from bank

Total

Working capitl facilidies of Holding Company arc secuced by first pacri

31 March 2021

31 Macch 2020

466.00 357.35
466,00 557,35
47,64 88.38
47.64 £8.23
513.64 645.71

assu chagge by way of hypothecation and/ or pledye of cucent assats, namely finished goods, rw matedal, work in progzess, consumable stores and

spates, book debts, bill receivable both present and futuee and second pacei-passe charge by way of mocgige and / or hypothecation i respect of ocher movable and immovshle propecies both peesenc and furre af the

Holding company.

Wacking capita! facility amounting Gncluding overdraft facilities) Rs.1:46.08 ceores (previous year 159.80 crorcs), obtained by subsicliacy P'L. Jindal Stainless Indonesia is collateralized by inventories, land and machinery and

accounts recevahle and lerter of comioa/undecaking For non disposing of equity investment in PT, Jindal Sminless Indonesia by the Holding Company.

Working capiral Fwlity of Holding Company Trom hank inclades cash crodic faciliry and working capital demand loan amounting t Z 31002 vrores [previous year T 39744 crores). These Dormawings are also secured by

additional securities as mentioned ia note 15{VT}.

Refer nute 47 foc disclosure of fair values ln especr of financial liubiliiies measured at amorised cost and analysis of eheic mutunty profile.

{Lhis e bas been intenstomatly #fi biank )
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@

[

)
®

Trade payables

Tatal outstancling dues of micco enterprises and small encerprises {refer nute A below)
Toral outstandling dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Toral

As ar Asal
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
1773 £7.28
2,514.12 257230
2%,63L.85 2,659.58

On (lse basis of confinmaion obrained from suppliers who luve cegistered themselves under the Miceo, Small and Medium Enterprise Development fict, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available

with the Group, dues tisclesed as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 at the yeac end are below:

Parliculars

The principal amount and the intecest due thercon rem:dning unpaid  any supplicr as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due
Incerest amount due

The amount of interest paid by the buye in Leems ol section 16, alang wirl the amounts of the paymear made 1o the supplier beyond the appoinied day during each accounting
year

“IT'he amount of intzeest due and payable for the perod of delay in making payment (which have been paid bue beyornd the oppointed day during the year) but without adding the
incesest specified under the Act

The amount of interest accrued aud remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

‘The amount of Further interest cemaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dare when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterpoise,
for e purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

Current tax Liabilives {nel)

Provision for ksation (ner of prepaid taxes)

Total

{This space huzs been indentionatly &ff blamke }

31 March 2021 31 Morch 2020
(17.62 37.26
0.4 no2
o 002
As ar Asat

31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
0.89 072
.89 0.72
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2

=

27

xplanatory information 1o consolidated financial statemnents for the year ended 3§ March 2021

TRevenue from operations Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Sale of products
Manufachared goods 11,672.66 11,922.16
Trading goods 25936 509.72
11,932,02 12,431.88
Sale of services
Job charges veceived 12598 24235
Business supporl services 66.08 77.32
Consultancy income 0.68 6.97
192.75 326.54
Orther operaling revenue
Expon benefits 46,4 98.72
Sale of gases 657 10.63
Liability no longer required, wrilten back 276 63.07
Others 7.92 1943
63.69 192.45
Total 12,188.46 12,950.87
Other income Year cnded Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Macch 2020
Tnlerest income on
Invesuments 397 288
Fixed deposiis and other receivables 9.24 +.90
Trade receivables 5.21 2.89
Income-tax refund L.70 344
Pinancial assets measuced at amortised cost 1.27 1.21
Profit on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment 047 -
Insurance claim ceceived 692 8.4
Others 12,12 B.63
‘Taral 40,90 29.89
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and si ock-in-trade Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening stock
Finished goods 713.57 37179
Work in progress 1,010.93 1,024.29
Stock-in-teade 5.36 1181
1,729.36 1,613.89
Closing stock
Finished goods 590.56 713.57
Work in progress 1,022.30 1,010.93
Stock-in-trade 145 3.36
1,614.31 1,729.86
Translation difference in invenlory (191} {11.26)
Total 113.64 (127.23)
Employee benefits expense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salacies, wages, bouns and other benefils 162.57 186.55
Contribution to provident and other funds 8.50 889
Staff welfare expenses 6.80 2.09
Total 177.87 204.53
Finance cost Year ended Yenr ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Tatlerest on borrowings 404.41 496.76
Interest on lease liabilities 807 840
Cther barrowing cosis 67.60 80.37
Total 480,08 585.53
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28 Depreciation and amortisaiion expenses

2!

k=

Depreciation on propety, plnt and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortigation of innngible assets
Total

Other expenses

Consumption of slotes and spare pacls
Power and fuel

Labour processing and trangportation charges
Repairs to buildings

Repairs to plant and machinery

Job work expenses

QOther manufac mring £xpenses

Lass on disposal of property, plani and equipment

Insurance

LRent

Rates and raxes

Legal and professional
Communication

Printing and statiouery

‘Travelling and conveyance
Dircctor's meeling fees

Vehicle upkesp and maintenance
Auditor's temuneration {refec note a below)
Freight and forwarding cxpenscs
Commission on sales

Other sellng expenses

Allowance for expeceed credic losses
Bad debts written off
Advertisement and publicity

Miscellaneous expenscs
Toral

Payment Lo suditors (excluding applicable taxes)

As statutory audilor

For other services

For reinbursement of expenses
Total

Pursuant to section 135 of the Act, the Holding Company has constituled 1 Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR} Comumitiee which is ceq

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
378.25 404 08
13.21 12449
11,50 8.59
402.96 425.16
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
580.74 71446
633.03 792.61
173.07 193,40
332 905
3440 29.21
B10.72 76450
150.28 (59.88
0.12 -
16.42 12.534
20.22 19.85
2.00 117
8048 5743
2.9 242
4.02 5.18
l.a2 4.85
0.56 0.23
10.05 12.36
0.61 0.67
171.99 17295
16.55 32.10
2595 25.01
14.63 1.08
245 0.86
.10 093
21.40 15.78
2,777.62 3,028.37
046 046
012 0.13
0.03 0.08
0.61 0.67

uited (o formulate and recommend to the Board

of Directors a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the CSR setivities to be undertaken by the Holding Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Act. The gross amount to
be speat by the Holding Company as pe: the limils of section 133 is T il ( previous year T ml}

{This shae fas beew intentiowofly foff blank)
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30 Income-tax Year ende<l Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
‘The income rax expense consists of the following:
Current tax
Current lax 0.73 L26
Taxes in relation to earlier years 0.25 1895
0.98 20.21
Deferred tax
Relating Lo origination and ceversal of temporacy differences 269.23 7243
269.23 7243
Tatal tax expense 270.21 92.64
Reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the lacest statutory enacted tax rate in Year ended Year ended
[ndia 1o income-tax expense reported is as follows: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax 689.67 165.26
Applicable tax rate for the Holding Company 3+.54% 34.94%
Expected income-tax expense (A) 241.00 5775
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income-tax
expense to reported income-rax expense
{Income exempred from) / expenses not deductible in tax 19.00 18.74
Income taxable at different cate (0.46) 5.85
Defecred tx not recogrised on shace of profit of associates {1.82) 275
Others 12.49 7.55
Tolal adjustments (B) 20.21 34.89
[ncome-tax expense (A+B) 270.24 92.64
Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 3] March 2021 :-
Particulars Opening deferred Income-tax Income-tax Mavement Closing deflesced
tax asset / (cxpense) / credit | (expense) / credit [ chrough foreign tax asset /
(liability) recognized in recognized in currency (liability)
profit or loss other translation reserve
comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment and intanpible assets (1,240.21) 324 - - (1,235.97)
Financial assets and Anancial liabilities mensured at amortised cost {L149) (15.14) - - (26.63)
Lease linbility 2713 ©.99) - - 26.14
Trems deductible on actual payment or settlement 3415 15,73 {0.83) - 49.07
Allowance for expected credit losses 27.05 6.83 - - 33.88
Brought forward tax losses and unabsocbed depreciation 889.05 (28151} - - 607.54
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 77.65 - - - 77.65
Otlicrs 637 2.5 - 067 8.29
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) (190.30) {269.23) (0.83) {0.67) {461.03
Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2020 :-
Particulars Opening deferred Income-tax Income-tax Movement Movement Closing deferred
tax asset / (expense) / credit | (expense) / eredit through other through foreign tax asset /
(liability} recogmized in recognized in equity currency (liability)
profit or loss other translation reserve
comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,237.23) (17.74 - 1476 - (1,240.21)
Finzncial assets and knancial liabilities measured ac amortised cost {3.95) (7.54) - - - (11.49)
Lease Linbility - 2713 - - - 2743
Trems deductible on actual payment or settlement 28913 (255.36) 0.38 - - 3415
Allowance for expected credit losses 25,27 L.78 - - - 27.05
Brouglt forward tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation 71345 175,60 - - - 889.05
Minimum alternate tax ceedic entidement 77.65 - - - - 77.65
Others 3.43 3.70 - - {0.16) 6.37
Net deferred tax asset / (lability) (132.25) (72.43) 0.38 14.76 (0.76) (190.30

(This sperce hes Doent intentionelly feft bk}
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31

A

Revenue from contracts with cuslomers

Disaggregation of revenue

"The Group has performed a disaggregated annlysis of revenncs considering the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty

timing of recogmition.

er explanacory information 10 consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

of revenues. This includes disclosure of revenues by geogmphy and

Year ended 31 March 2021

Hevenue from operations Goods Services Orher operaling Total
revenue*

Revenuc by geography

Wichin India 923812 192.06 1346 9,443.64
Outside India 2,693.90 0.69 1.03 2,695.62
Tatal 11,932.02 192,75 14.49 12,139.26
Revenue by time

Revenue recognised a1 point in time 11,9465
Revenue recopnised over lime 192.75
Total 12,139.26

# Other operting revenue amounling to ¥ 49.20 crores in the nature of export incentives and labililies o
from Contrcts with Customers” and hence, not included in the table above.

o longer required wrilten back is nor in the scope of Iud AS 115 on "Revenue

Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue {rom cperations Goods Services Other operating Taotal
revenue®

Revenue by geography

Within India 9,085.96 319.55 27.41 943292
Cutside lodia 3,345.92 699 2.65 3,355.56
Total 12 431.88 326.54 30.0¢ 12,788.48
Revenue by 1ime

Revenue recopuised at point in lune 1246194
Revenue recognised over time 326.54
Tolal 12,788.48

* Other operakiag revenue amounting la ¥ 162,39 crores in the natuce of export incentives and liabihities no longer required written back is not in the scope of on

Contracts with Customers” and hence, net included in che 1able above.

"Revenue from

. Revenue recognised in relation 1o contract liabilities
Description Year ended Year ended
3§ March 2021 | 31 Masch 2020
Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contact liability balance al the beginning of the period 138.96 128.60
Revenue recogaiscd in the eporting period from performance oblipatious satiskied for paciially satisfied) in previous petiods - -
‘Total 138.96 123.60

. Assels and liabililies relaled 10 contracts with cusiomers
Description As al 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Non-current Current MNon-current Current
Conlract liabilities relaled to sale ¢f goeds
Advance from cuslomers - 80.82 - 128.96
. Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Descriplion Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contect price 12,39940 12,984.53
Less: Discount, rebates, ceedits ete. 260. 14 196.05
TRevenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 12,139.26 12,788.48

{1 0is space bas boew intestionally loff D)
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32 Eamings per share (EPS) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Nel profit for the year (in T crares) for basic EPS (A) 419.23 7132
Add: Interest expenses on potenlial equily shaces (in X crores) - 5501
Net profit for the year {in T crores) for diluted EPS (B) 419.23 126.33
Total shares oulstanding in the beginning of the year (in numbers) 487,234,600 479,221,660
Add: Weighted averge sumber of shaces issued ducing the year - 4,291,083
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic EPS (C) 487,234,600 483,512,743
Elffec ilution
Add: Weighted average number of shares outsianding on account of Optionally Convertible Tedeemable - 131,123,208
Preference Shares {OCRPS)*
Add: Weighted averge number of shares outstanding on account of share warran 7320,781 -
Weighted-average numbes of equity shares [or diluted EP5 (D) 494,555,381 614,635,951
Basic EPS {Amount in T) (A/C) 860 1.48
Diluted EPS (Amount in ) (B/D) 848 148

* OCRPS ace asti-dilutive in natuce

33 Due to ouibreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) which has been declared 25 n pandemic by World Health Organization and subsequent lock down ordered by the Central and State Government{s) in
Tudia, the manufacturing Fcilitics of the Holding Company remained suspended fom 25 March 2020 61 4 May 2020. The Holding Company in compliance with the necessary instructions/guiclelines, cesumed its
opemtions on 5 May 2020 in 2 phased manacx, while ensudag health safety of all the stakehelders.

This situation resulted in wemporry disturbance in the economic activilies lhrough mteouption in manufacturing peocess, distuption in supply chain, etc. for the Holding Company during the year ended
2| March 2021. Fuether, the recent second wave of COVID-19 has resulied in partial lockdown,/estriction in various states of Indin. However, the Group is closely monitoring the impact of the aforementioned
paademic and believes that there will not be any adverse impact on the long term opeations, financial position and pecformance of the Group.

3 Composite scheme al arrangement
I Demesger

A The Composite Scheme of Arrangement {hereinafter roferved ta as the ‘Scheme’) amongst the Holding Company {transferoc company) and iis theee wholly owned subsidiarics, namely, Jindal Staialess (Flisar)
Limited (JSFIL}, Jinda! United Steel Limited {JUSL) and Jindal Coke Limited {JCL) {resultant campanies} under the provisions of section 391-394 cead with section 100-103 of the estwhile Companies Act, 1956
and other relevant povisioa of the Companies Act, 1956 and / or the Companies Act, 2013 was sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Couct of Punjab aud ITayana, Chandigach vide it oxder dated 21 September
2015, amended vide order dated 12 Ociober 2015.

Section 1 and section 11 of the Scheme became effective on | November 2013, operative from the appointed date i.e. close of business hours before midnight of 31 March 2014. Section 11T and section 1V of the
Scheme became effective on 24 Septembez 2016 [ie. on receipt of approvals from the Orissa Industrial Infmstuctuce Development Corpomtion (CTIDCO) for the wansfer/grau of the right to use of ihe lud on
which Hot Steip Mill (HSM) Plant and Coke Oven Pluits aze located, 10 JUSL and JCL respectively as specified in the Scheme], operative from the appointed date ie. close of business hours before miduight of
31 Macch 2015.

B Pursnant to the Section 111 and Section IV of the Scheme becoming elfective:

I

=

Business undestaking 2, comprising, inter alia, of the HSM plane of the Holding Company, was transferred to JUSL ata lurmp sum considertion of T 2,412.67 crores; oul of this T 2,150.00 crores was received,
and against the balance amount of T 262.67 croces, JUSL issued and allotted to the Helding Company:
~ 175,000,000 0.01% non-cumulative compulsorily convertible prefecence shares (CCPS) having face value of ¥ 10 each [upto the year ended 31 March 2020

99,048,637 CCPS wece allotted 1o the Holding Company and converted inlg equal number of equity shares of T 10 each as fully paid al par and (he balance 63,654,063 CCPS have been presented s
“Investment in 0.01%% Non-cumnulitive compulsorily convertible preference shaces” (Refer note 4], and
. 87,673311 10% non-cumulative non-convertible cedeemable preference shaces having face value of X 10 each, which kave been alloited to the Holding Company.

(i) Business undertaking 3, comprising, i#ter afia, of the Coke Oven plant of the Holding Company, was tmnsferced to JCL at a lamp sum considernlion of T 492,65 crpres; aul of this T 375,00 crores was received
and agrinst the balaee amoun of T 117.65 crores, JCL issued aud altotied to the Holdng Company:
- 26,000,000 0.01% non-cumulative CCPS having face value of T 10 each uplo the year ended 31 Macch 2020,
8,382,432 CCPS were allotted to the Holding Company and converted into equal number of equity shares of T 10 cach fully paid at pac. During the yeax, the Holding Company converted the balance 17,617,568
CCPS initially alloted, inta equal number of '10% non-cumulative non-convertible redeerable preference shares having face value of T 10 each fully paid at pas” (Refer note 4], and
91,647,073 10% non-cumulative non-convertible cedeemable preference shaces having face value of T 10 each, which have been allotted to the Holding Company,

II Merger
At its meeling held on 29 December 2020, the Board of dircctors of the Holding Company considered and appeoved 2 Composite Scheme of Amangement (Scheme’) pusuanl to Sections 230 o 232 and other
relevant provisions of the Comparnies Act, 2013, amongst the Holding Company {Amalgansated Company), Jindal Siainless (Hisar) Limited, JSL Vifestyle Limited, JSL Media Limited, Jindal Stainless Corporale
Management Secvices Privale Limited (rmalgamaiing compames) and Jindal Lifestyle Limited (resulting company). The aforementioned scheme is subject to necessary statutory and cegulalory approvals under
applicable laws, including approval of the National Company Law Trbunal in Indin which is currently awaited.

35 Contingenl liabilities As at As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A Demands from statulory and regulatory authorities
@) - Sales tax, value added 1ax and entry L1079 11079
- Excise duly, custom dugy, service tax and GST # 44.70 17.08
- Tncome-tax {refer note C below) 99.96 100.31
(i) - Demand from office of the Dy. Director of Mines, Jajpur Road Circle, Odisha on account of mining of excess quatity of chrome ore over 71.53 77.53%

and above the approved quantity under mining plw/scheme

- Royalty under the Mines and Minesls (Development and Regulation) Acl, 1957, mral infrastructace and socio-economic development rx 480 5.13
under the Orissa Rueal Tnfmstructure and Socio-Economic Development Act, 2004 and Water rax under 1he Crissa Ierigation Act, 1959

B Corporate guamntce given to banks against credit facilities / financial assisiance availed by Jindal Stinless (Flisar) Limited - amount for 2,940.36 3,378.11
facilities outstanding [cead with note 3-1(T))

3,278.14 3,688.95

* The Ilolding Compauy bad challenged the legality of Orissa Enuey Tax Act, 1999 before the Hon'ble Supreme Courl., The ordee dated 09 Ociober 2017 of Divisional bench of the How’ble Supeeme Court read
with the order dated 11 November 2016 of Nine Judge TBench of Fow'ble Supreme Court, decided some of the issues and granted epportunity to the petitioners for filing cevival petition within 30 days for
deciding the issue of discrimination under Aricle 304(n) as pec hw lnid down by Nine Judges Bench of the Hon'ble Supreme Courl. The Holding Company has filed revival petition before the Fon'ble High
Court of Orissa on the ground of discrimination under Aricle 304(a), as per the direction of the How'ble Supreme Court. Howeser, interest/penalty (if any) 6}l the decision of the Hon'ble Supreme Court has
Been stayed by Hoa'ble High Court of Orissa in theee separate writ petitions filed by the Holding Company on the issue exclusively on the legality of imposing intecest under the Orissa Entry Tax fet, 1999 and
therefore, liabilaty, if any, in this regard will be recognised when (his malter is finally setiled/determined by the Tlon’ble Eligh Court of Odssa.

#

mount inclucles basic, mierest and penalty as demanded by the concemed authority in the relevant case.

t@i \jies for income-tax specified above, iufer afia , includes T 45.54 crores pertnining to the Hokding Company for Assessmenl years 2012-13 10 2014-15 for why SOt expect any
the Holding Company has sufficient unabsocbeed depreciation to set off from disallowance, if auy, that may arse on account of advesse wlin %’ \
mands. Having said that, the nanagement is Fairly confident of a favourable outcome for e ongoing demaucls/ lirigations on all the aforementioned ye

L3
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36 Commitments

Gstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)
Other commitments

37 Exceptional items

Gain (nef) on translation/settlement of foreign currency monetary items
Gain/(loss) on fir valuation aod settlement of dedvative contracts
Amortisation of debit balance in forelpn currency monetary item translation diffecence account

3

©

Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR)

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
741.88 61.46
15.90 25.84
757.18 87.30
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maxch 2020
78.09 46.57
35.89 (27.62)
(11.57) (14.51}
102.41 444

A During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Flolding Company had exercised its right to redecm OCRPS and accordingly, ageregate amount of ¥ 558.47 crores was paid to the

OCRPS holders towards redemption of these OCIPS aloag with applicable recompense of 221.01 crozes.

B During the year ended 31 Macch 2020, the Holding Cornpany had successfully exited CDR after discharging the recompense liability of ¥ 274.75 crores (¥ 221.01 crores on
OCRPS and balance on other CDR Loaas) in cash as determined in accordance with RBT's Master Circular on Corporate Debt Restrocturing, State Bank of Inclia, in its capacity of
Monitoring Institution and on behalf of CDR lenders issued no objection certificate (NOC) confirming formal exit of JSL from CDR effective from 31 March 2019.

39 Derivative contracts entered into by the Group and outstanding as on 31 March 2021 for hedging foreign currency risks:

Nature of derivative Type 31 March 2021
Ne. of contracts Foreign currency
(in million}
Forward covers
USD/INR Sell 82 §179.94
BURO/USD Sell 51 €75.25
USD/INR Buy 320 $112.80

(This space has been infentionally &ff blauk)

31 March 2020

No. of contracts

70
25
289

Foreign currency
(in million}

$182.10
€47.00
§79.86
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40 Employee beaefils

A Defined contribulion plans

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Group's contibution 1o provident fund 373 5.87
Group's contrbution 1o employee welfare fund 0.26 027
Group's contrbution to national pension scheme 0.62 0.69
Group's contribution ta employee's state insurance scheme 0.08 0.12
Group's contribution te other fund LBL .94
Toral 8.50 8.89
B Delined benefit plan — Gratuity
) Reconciliation of present value of defined bencfit obligation and the fair value of plan assets As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present value of defined beneful obligntion as at the end of the year 19.67 20,53
Less: Faie value of plan assels at 1he cud of the year 11.22 1070
Net liability recognised in Ihe balance sheet 8.45 9.83
(i) Movement in the present value of defined benefit pbligaticn recagnised in the balance sheel Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Dresent value of defined benefit obligation as a1 the beginning of the year 20.53 18.81
Transfer in/out of employees from associnte companies 0.35 02l
Curcent service cosl 216 +.02
Tnterest cost 1.50 1.27
Benefits paid (2.08) (5.16)
Foreign exchange loss 073 0.38
Actuarial (gain)/loss (3.72) 1.00
Present value of defined benefit obligation as al the end ol the year 19.67 20.53
{lii} Movement in he plan assets recognised in (he balance sheet As al As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fair value of plan assets al the beginning of the year 10.70 9.96
Expected rerum on plan assets 0.73 077
Actuadal (loss) for the year on plan asset ©07) (0.10)
Employer contributions 1.10 .11
Benefits paid (1.2 (L.D4}
Fair value of plan assels at the end of the year 1L22 10.70
The [Holding Compaay's plan assets primacily comprise of qualifying msunce policies issued by Life Insumnce Corporation of [ndia.
(iv) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of: Year ended Year ended
31 Mazch 2021 31 March 2020
Employes benefil expense
Current seryice cost ‘ 2.16 4.02
Net interest cost 077 0.50
Amount recognised in the statement ol profit and loss 2.93 4.52
Ouier comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain)/loss ansing from clanges in financial assampLions (297 0.83
Actuarial {paisr)/loss asing from experience adjustments (0.76) 0.17
Retunt on plan assets excluding amounts inchided in uel interest on et defined beaefie liability {psset) 0.07) (.10}
(3.66) 1.10
() Actuarial gain/{lass) oa plan assets Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Expected interest income 073 0.77
Actual income ca plu asset 0.66 0.67
Actunrial gain/(loss) for the year on plan assel (0.07) {0.10)

(1 his sperce Das Deen intentionadly feft bk}




JINDAL STATNLESS LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information to consolidated financial staternents for the year ended 31 Macch 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

vi) The principﬂl Q.Cmﬂ.l'ial assumptinns uS(‘.d for esﬁmating the Grou 's de[lned benefit obh ﬂ.[iﬂl’lS are scl out below: Year ended Year E'I'ldl:d
P [54

Discount mtc 6.80% - 7.20% 6.82% - 8.3+4%
pa pa
Expected rate of increase in salary 5.00% - 3.30% 5.50% - 7.00%
pa. pa.
Retitement age 56-58 years 58 years
Mortality rate (inclusive of provision for disability) 100% of [ALM 100% o TAT.M
(201214 / (201214 /
CSO'B0 CSO'80
Expected average remaining wocking lives of employees(years) 2237 23.22

The assumption of discount rate is based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with 2 term that matches that of the liabiities. Futuce
salary incrense rate takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis, Same assumptions were considered for comparative
period Le. 2019-20 a5 reported.

{vii) Sensilivity analysis for gratuity liability Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the peried

Increase of 0.50% (3.1 (400)
Decrease of 0.50% 359 473
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 3.58 +73
Increase of 0.50% (3.10) (4.08)

Decrease of 0.50%

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not materinl and hence impact of change due to these not caleulated.

(viii) Estimate of expected benefit payments (in absolute terms i.c. undiscounted) Year ended Year ended
3L March 2021 31 March 2020

Oto | year 0.82 1.24
1to 5 year 6,70 476
Beyond 5 years 19.24 72.67

(ix) The Holding Company expects to contribute T 2.07 crores (previous year 2,07 crores) to its grawity plan for the next year.

(x) Risk exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over Gme. As such valuation of the Group is exposed to follow risks -
A) Salary increases : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation
B) Investment risk : Since the pln is funded, assets liabilitics mismatch and actual investment retuen on assets being lower than the discouat rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the defined benefic cbligation.

C) Discount rate : The defined benefit obligation calculation uses a discount rate based on government bonds. 1f bond yields fall, the defined benefit obliga tion will tend to
increase.
D) Mortality and disability : If the actual deaths and disability cases are lower or higher than assumed in the valuation, it can impact the defined benefit obligation.

E) Withdrawals : If the actual withdcawals are higher ot lower than the assumed withdewals or there is 8 change in withdrawal mtes at subsequent valuations, it can impact
defined benefit obligation.

41 Operating segments
In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, being the Chief operating decision maker of the Group has determined “Stainless stecl
products” as the only operating segiment. Furthec in terms of paragraph 31 of Ind AS 108, entity wide disclosures have been presented belows
No single customer account for mare than 10% revenue from operations of the Group.

31 March 2021
Within India Qutside India Total
Revenue from operations 9,492.8+4 2,695.62 12,1868.46
Non current assets 6,140.43 256.41 6,396.84
31 March 2020
Within India Qutside India Total
Revenue from opermtions 9,595.31 3,355.56 12,950.87
MNon current assets 6,357.83 250.01 6,607.84

(Ehis space Jues been intentionatly fft blank)




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED

Summary of significant accaunting policics and other explanatory information to consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021

{(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated)

42 Leasc related disclosures
The Group has leases for the factory land, plant and machinery, vehicle, building, furniture and rclated facilicies. With the
exception of short-term leases and leases of low-valuc underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-
use asset znd a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate aze excluded from the initial
measurement of the lease Liability and right of usc assets. The Group classifies its nghr-of-use assels in 2 consistent manner to its
property, plant and equipment.

Hach lease generally imposes a resteiction that, unless chere is a contractual right for the Group to sublease the asset to another
party, the zipht-of-use asset can only be used by the Group. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term.
The Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security.

A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Shork-term leases 15.76 14.83
Leases of low value assets 4.46 502

B Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2021 was  33.86 croces {previous year ¥ 29.54 crores).
C  The Group has total commitment for short-term leases as at 31 March 2021 ¥ 9.35 crores (previous year T 2.20 crores)
D Maturity of [ease liabilities
The lease liabilitics are securcd by the related underlying assets. Furure minimum lease payments (percaining to leases other than
short-term leases) are as follows:
31 March 2021 Minimum lease payments due
0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Total
Leasc payments 13.10 50.08 82.92. 146.10
Interest expense 6.97 24.06 39.66 70.69
Net present values 6.13 26.02 43.26 75.41
31 March 2020 Minimum lease payments due
0 to 1 year L ta 5 years More than 5 years Total
Lease payments 12.36 49.62 95.13 157.11
Interest cxpense 8.00 26.48 44.99 79.47
Net present values 4.36 23.14 50.14 77.64
E  Variable lease payments are expensed in the pesiod they are incurred. Expected future cash outflow permining to variable lease
payment as at 31 March 2021 is ¥ nil.
F Information about extension and termination options
Right-of-use assets Number| Range of Average | Number [ Number of Number of
ofleases | remaining |remaining| ofleases | leases with leases with
term lease term|  with purchase termination
extension option option
option
Plant and machinery 2 | 10 years 10 years 2 2 2
Vehicle B | 7 years 2 years 5 - 3
Turniture 1 [1year 1 year - - 1
Building 3 | 2 years 1 year 1 - 2
Land 4 | 69 years 69 years 4 - 4
G 'I'here are no leases which are yet to commence as on 31 March 2021




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to consolidated financial statements for the year cnded 31

March 2021

{All amounts in T crores, unless otherwise stated)

H The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease labilities
Txpense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses)

Total

I ‘The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars

Opening lease Labilites

Add:Addition in Lease Liabilities due to modificadon of lease liability
Add: Finance cost accrued during the period

Less: Lease rent paid

Balance at the end

43 Remuneration paid to Key management personnel (KMT)

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits *
Sitting fees

Total

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
13.21 12,42
8.07 8.40
15.76 14.83
4,46 5.02
41.50 40.74
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
T7.64 81.65
1.73 -
8.07 840
(12.03) (12.41)
75.41 77.04
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
753 18.12
0.15 0.13
0.25 0.23
7.93 18.48

*Does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for all the employees together.

44 Assets pledged as security for borrowings

Current

Financial assets
Investments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than above
Loans

Cther financial assets
Non financial assets
Inventories

Other current assets
Total

Non-current

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Investments

Other financial assets

Total

Total assets pledged as security

As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
0.58 253
£59.89 617.93
50.25 15.93
38.95 28.45
3.04 3.16
68.32 76.48
2,540.02 2.405.96
191.69 207.20
3,752.74 3,357.64
5,870.25 6,189.35
49.22 %.13
393.07 296.47
0.76 2.24
6,513.90 6,497.19
10,066.64 9,854.83




JINDAL STAINLESS LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ crores, unless otherwise stated}

45 Related party disclosures
1. Relationships

(a) Key management personnel (KM

5INo  [Name Designation
1 Me. Ratan Jindal Chairman and Managing Director
2 Mr. Abhyuday Jindal Managing Director
3 Mr. Tarun Kumar Khulbe VWhole Time Director
4 Mr. Navneet Raghuvanshi Comnpany Secretary
5 Mr. Anurag Mantri Chief Financial Officer
4 Mr. Gautam Kanillal Nominee Ditector [Ceased to be Dirccror with effect from (w-e.[7) 8 September 2020]
7 Mr. Parveen Kumar Malhotta Nominee Directot(Appointed w.e.f8 September 2020)
B Mr. Suman Jyeti Chairtan Independent Director
9 Mr. Jayaram Easwaran Tndependent Director {(appointed w.e.f. 5 August 2019)
10 |Mr T.S. Bhattacharya Independent Dicector{Censed to be Dicector w.e.f. 22 September 2031 )
11 Ms. Bhagwatt Mukherjee Independent Dircctor
2 Mrs. Arti Luniya Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f 26 November 2019
13 Dir. Regeev Ubcroi Independent Director {Ceased to be Director w.c.f 2 July 2019)

(b) Associates*®

Principal place of . . Sharehelding / voting power
. . Principal activities / nature of
S51No [Name ofthe entity operation / country of .
. R business As at As at
incorporation
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

L Jindal Stainless Corporate Management Services Private Limited  |India Management secvices 50.00% 50.00%
2 |Jindlal United Steel Limited [ndia Stainless Steel manufacturing 26.00% 26.00%
3 |/indal Coke Limited India Coke Manufacturing 26.00% 26.00%

(c) Entity cxercising significant influence on the Holding Company*

Principal place of .. N
racipa’ p Principal activities / nature of

S1 i i
No |Name of the entity oper:auon/ cm.mtry of business
incgrporation
1 indal Stainless (Hisar) Limited JSHL) India Stiniess Steel manufactuding
(d) Subsidiarics of eniity exercising significant influence on the Holding Company¥
Principal place of
SINo [Name of the entity operation / country of Principal aclivities / nature of business
incorporation
L ISL Lifestyle Limited India Stainless steel Consumer Products
2 JSL Logistics Limited India Logistic
3 indal Stainless Steelways Limited Tndia Stainless Steel manufacturing
4 17.5.5. Steclitalia Limited India Stainless Steel manufacturing
(¢) Entities under the control/significant influence of KMP*
Principal place of
SI1No |(Name of the entity operation / country of Principal activities / nature of business
incorporation
1 Prime Stainless DMCC UAE Trading company
2 JSL Global Commodities Pte. Ltd. Singapore Trading company
3 indal Advance Materials Pve Lod. India Glass composite business.
4 Q.. Jindal Charitable Trust India Chartiable trust

*with whom transactions have occucred

(D Post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Holding Company

Principal place of |, i oal activities / nawre of
5INo |Name of the entity operation / country of rnelp
N I business
incorperation
1 Jindal Stainless Limited Group Gratity [fund India Company's employee gratuily trust

(This spae has been intentionally kft biank)
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47 Financial instmmenis

A Financial asseis and liabilivies

The accounting chissification of each category of inancial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set aut below:

Particulars MNowe Asat Asat

31 Miarch 2021 31 March 2020

Financial asseta measured at fair value thirough profit or loss:

[nvestments 4 A .58 0.22

Derivarive assel 6 41.51 360.83
Financial assets measured at fair valie through other comprehensive income:

Investmenls 44 B.58 8.58
Tinancial assets measuced a1 amortised cosi:

[nvestments 40 39.80 36.06

Loans 5 109.57 LLoA43

Qther (inancrl assets 6 27.57 49.73

Trade receivables 10 933.89 705.19

Cash and cash equivalents 1 7137 40.21

Other bank balances 12 38.95 28.45
Tolal 1,271.82 1,009.70
Financial linbilities measured at fair value throngh profit or loss:

Derivative liability 16 7.22 61.79
Financial linbililies measured at amorused cost:

Borrowings (including cutrent maturity of long werm dels) 15, 16 8 20 3,154.36 3,902.90

QOrher financial fiabilitics le 773.82 54L.76

I'tade payables 21 2,63L.85 2,659.58
‘Toal 6,567.25 ,166.03

Tnvestment in associates ace measused as per equity method and hence, not presented here.

B Fair values bierarchy
The fair value of financial instrurnents as referred to in note {A} above has been dlassitied inlo three categories depending on the inputs vsed in the valuation rechnique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to queted poces
in active markets For identical assets ot liabilities |Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measucements).
The categaries used are as follows:
Level I: Quoted prices for identical instruments ia an active markel;
Level 2: Directly i.c. as prices) or indirectly {.e. derived From prices) obsecvable market inputs, ather than Level | inputs; and
Level 3: Lnputs which axe not based on observable market data (unobsecrable mputs). Fair values ace dececminesd in whole or in part using a net assel value or vahntion model based on assumpticns that ace neither supported
by prices irom observable corcent market (rmasactions in the same instrament nor are they based on available macket dara.

B.1 Financial assets and labilities measured at fair valne - recurring fair value measnrements -

As ar 31 March 2021 MNote Level L Level2 Level 3 Toral
Financial agsets measured at fair value throngh profit or loss:

Investments 4A 0.58 - - 0.58

Derivative assets [} - 41.51 - 41,51
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Investments 4A - - 8.58 8.58
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Derivative liabilitics i6 - 7.22 - 7.22
As ar 31 March 2020 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
Financial assets measured at faic vahie throngh profit or foss:

Investments 4A 0.22 - - .22

Detivative assets 6 - 30.83 - 30.83
Financial assets measured at foir value through other comprehensive income:

Investments 4A - 8.58 8.58

Financial liabilies measured at fair value throngh profit or loss:
Derivative liabilitics 16 - 61.79 - 6179

Valuation process and technique nsed o determine fair value

(i) The fair value of investments in quated equity shates is based on the cucrent bid price of respective investment s at the batance sheet date.

{if) The Gair value of investrments in unquoted equity shares is estimated at their respective costs, siace those compaaies do not have any significant opecations and rhere has neither been any signilicant change in their performance
since initial recognition nor there is any expectation of such changes in foreseeable fisture.

(ili) The Group enters into forward conteacts with banks for hedging loreign currency risk of irs borrowings and cecelvables and payables arising from impert and esport of goods. Tair values of such forward contracts are
determined based on spot cucrent exchange rates and torwacd foreign currency exchange premiums on similar contracts for the remaining marurity on the balance sheet date.

B.2 Fair valuc of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instruments d a1 amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these [ir values are calculuted using Level 3 inputs:
Particulars Asg al @ March 2021 Aa at Bl March 2020
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assels
Investments 3977 H.09 33.80 33
Secunty deposits 28.06 29.22 26.57 2773
Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months 0.76 076 224 224
Loans 7831 7831 78.69 78.69
Financial liabilides
Security deposits 32.60 47.88 29.12 18.92
Borrowings 2,593.08 2,593.08 2,715.57 2715.57

The management assessed thar fiir values of cucrent loans, olher current fGrancial assers, cash and cash cquivalents, orher bank balances, ade eeeivables, cutrent investments, shoct teem borrowings, trade payables and other
curcent financial liabilities approximate their respective carrying amounts largely duc to the short-teem maruritics of these instruments. The (i value of the Gnancial assets and liabilities is disclosed at die amount ar which the
instrument could be exchanged in a cucrent teansaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fellowing methods and assumptions were vsed to estimare the fair valaes:

(i) Non-current investments, long-tezm laans and advances and non-cucrent financial liabilities ace evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates, individual creditvorthiness of the counterparty/borcower and
other market risk factors.

(i) The fair values of the Group's fised interest-bearing linbilities, loans and receivables ace deteemined by applying discounted cash flows (DCM) method, using discount rate that reflects the issued’s botrowing rabe a3 at the end
of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 Narch 2021 was ussessed o be insignificant.

(i) Most of the long term borrowing fcilities availed by the Group from unrelated pasties ace variable rate Iacilities which are subject to changes in undeclying intesest rare indices. Further, the credit spread on these [acilities are
subject to change willi changes in Group's credit worthiness. The incer corporate deposit from the relaced party is also a variable rate Bacility which is subject to changes as nolified by lender from lime to time ip ace
with prevailing marke interest tates. ‘The management believes that the current rate of interest on these loans are in close approximation Trom macker ates applicable 10 Lpgmiewmtn, ¢
the fir value of these bosrowings are approximuate to their respective carcying values.
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C Financial risk management

C.l
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Risk management

"I'he Group's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and ceedit risk. The Group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framewok. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and lhow the entity manages the risk and the relared impact in the Financil statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Tnvestments in redeemable preference shares and government securities,| Aging analysis, Credit ratings Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, ceedt limits
loans, Cash nud cash equivalents, ade reccivables, derivarive hnancial
instruments and other financial assets measurcd at amartised cost

Liguidiry risk Barrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of commitred credit lines and borrowing
Macket risk - foreign | Recoguised financial assets and liabilities not denominated in Indian rupee  |Cash flow forecasting, Forward forcign exclange contracts

cxchange &)

Market risk - interest  |Long-term borrowings at vaciable mies Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that re flect the market faciors
Macket risk - security  |Investments in equity securities Sensitivily nnalysis Diversificalion of portfolio, with focus on statcgic
price investments

The Group’s cisk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Group) under policies approved by the Board of Directors of the respective companies. "The respective Board of
Directors provides written principles for overall risk management, a5 well as policies covering specific arens, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate sk, credit risk and iavestment of excess
liquidity.

Credit risk

Credir cisk is the risk that a countemarty fails 1o discharge its obligntion to the Group. The Group's exposurc to credit risk is influenced mainly by investments in redeenmble preference shares, cash

and cash equivalents, wade receivables, derivative financial instruments and other financial asscls measured at amortised cost. The Group contnuously monitors defults of customers and ather
countemarties and incorportes this information into its credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

The Group assesses and manages ceedit risk based on inteenal credit rating system. Imeenal credic rating is pecformed for each class of fmancial instruments with different characteristics, The Group
assigns Lhe following credit rmtings o each class of financial assets based on the assumpticns, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

@ Low credit risk

() Modermte credr risk

(i) High credit dsk

Based on business environment in which the Group operates, a default on a financial asser is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per conteact.
Loss mics reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between cucrent and historical economic conditions,

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as 4 debtor declacing bankruprey or a litigarion decided aguinst the Group. The Group continues t© engage swith pacties
whose balances are written off and attempts Lo enforce cepayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statemeat of profit and loss.

In tespect of financial nssets carried at amortised cost, other than trade ceceivables, the management has evaluated that as at 31 March 2021 and 31 Macch 2020, the credit risk is low and hence,
allowance, if any, is measured at 12-month expected credit loss.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group is required to follow simplified approach and accardingly, allowance is recognised for liferime expected credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credi risk related o cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only investing in highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the
countries.

Derivative Fnancial insrruments
Derivative financial instruments are considered ta have low credit risk since the contects ate with reputable banks, most of which have an ‘investment grade’ credit ranng.

Trade reccivables

Trade receivables are geaecally unsccured and non-interest bearing. There is no significant concenmation of credit risk. The Group's ceedit risk management policy in relation to trade receivables
involves periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, 1aking into account theic financial position, past expentnce and other fciors, The utilization of credit limit is regulacly monitored
and a significant element of credit risk is coveced by credit insurance. The Group's credit tisk is mainly confined o the risk of customers defaulting against credit sales made. Outstanding tmde
receivables are regularly monitared by the Group. The Group has also taken advances and security deposits from its customers, which nudgate the credit risk o an extent. Tn respect of mde
receivahles, the Group recognises a provision for lifetime cxpected credit losses after evaluating the individual probabilities of default of its customers which are duly Dbased on the inputs received
from the markeling reams of the Group.

Other financial assets measured 2t amortised cost

Investments in redeenuble preference shares of associate companies, loans (comprising security deposits) and other Fnancial assets are considered 1o have low credit tisk since there is a low risk of
default by the countempacties owing to their capacity to meer contractual cash flow obligations as and when fall due. Credi cisk related to these other financial asscts is managed by monitoring the
tecovembility of such amounts continuously, while at the same rime intecnal conirol system in place cosuce the amounts are wirzn de fined limits.

Expected credit losses for inancial assets

Financial assets (other than trade receivalles)

Group provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances other than tde receivables by assessing individual financial instruments for expectalion of any credit losses.

- For cash and cash equivaleats, other bank balances and derivative financial instraments- Since the Group deals with only high-rated banks and Fnancial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and
cash cquivalents, derivative Bnancial instruments, other bank balances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low.

- For loans comprising security deposits paid - Credit risk is considered low because the Group is it possession of the underlying asset

- For other financial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Group's knowledge of the credit worlhiness of those paztics and loss allowance is measured. For such financial assets, the Group's policy
is to provide for 12 month expected credit losses ugon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk.

As at 31 Maech 2021 and 31 March 2020, management has evaluated that the probability of default of outstanding financial asscts (other than trade receivables) is insignificant andl thecefore, no
allowance for expected credit losses has been recogmsed.
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

In respect of wade receivables, the Group measuces the loss allowance at an amaowt equal to Lifetime expected credit losses using a simplified approach.

Based on evaluation of historical credit loss experience, management considers an insignificant probability of default in cespect of reccivables which ace less than one year overdue. Receivables which
are more than one year overdue are analysed individually and allowaace for expected credir loss is recognised accordingly.
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C.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidiry cisk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meetng the obligations assocmted with its Binancial Liabilities that are setiled by delivering cash or another hoancial asset. The
Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensue as far as possible, it will have sufficient liquidity 1o meet its liahilities when they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash Aows. The Geoup kes into aceount the liquidity of the macket in

wluch the entity operates.

a) Financing arrangements
The Group las access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Secured* 1,023.03 66624
* Working capiml facilities due [or review every year
b) Maturities of financial liabilities
The rables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupmgs hased on their conlractual maturities,
The amounis disclosed in the mble are the contracmal undiscounted cash Hows. Balances due within 12 months equal ticic carrying amaunts s the impact of discounting is not signilicant
31 March 2021 Less than | year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 Total
years
Non-derivatives
Borrowing {including current marurities of long term debt) along with estimated future interest 214.57 1,554.77 393.06 1,393.81 3,556.21
Shore term borrowings 513.64 - - - 513.64
Security depusit 15.03 - - 329.64 344.67
Trade payables 2,631.85 - - - 2,631.85
Other Einancial lialnlities 655.01 2197 1310 106.80 796.88
Derivatives
Deerivative linbility 7.22 - - - 7.22
‘Total 4,037.32 1,576.74 406.16 1,830.25 7,850.47
31 March 2020 Less than | year -2 year 2-3 year More than 3 Total
years
Non-derivatives
Borrowing (including curcent matusities of long teem dels) along with estimated future interest 853.08 579.17 1,374.36 1,604.60 441121
Short term borrowings 645.73 - - - 645.73
Security deposit 13447 - - 329.6:4 Min
"I'mde payables 3,655.58 - - - 2,659.58
QOther financial linbilities 425.89 1241 121 119.87 570,58
Derivatives
Derivative liabilicy 61.79 - - - 1,79
Total 4,659.54 591.58 1,386.77 2,054.11 8,692.00

C.3 Market risk
a) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk in the aormal course af its business. Multiple curcency exposures arise from commercial Lmnsactions like sales, purchases, borrowings, recognized
financial assets and Liabitities {monetary items). Cernain transactions of the Group act s natural hedge as 2 portion of both assets and liabilities are denominated in similac foreign currencies. For the
remaining exposte to foreign exchange risk, e Group adopts the policy of selective hedging based on risk perceplion ¢f management Foreign exchange liedging contracts are carried at fair value.
Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments outseanding as on the balance sheet date are as under

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Foreign currency Amaount Foreign currency Amount

(in million)  crores) (in million) (X crores)

‘Trade receivables
GBP 0.02 0.22 - -
Balance with banls
usD 0.01 0.08 - -
EUR 0.03 0.27 - -
Borrowings
usD - - 36.56 276.34
‘Trade payables
UsD 38.24 279.62 6343 479.42
LEUR 332 28.51 2.59 21.61
GBP 0.20 1.98 0.00 001
JPY - - 025 0.02
SGD - - 0,00 0.00

Foreign exchange risk scositivity analysis has been perfoaned on the foreign currency exposures in the Group’s finaneial assets and financial liabilitics at the reporting date, net of derivative contracts
for hedging those exposurcs. Reasonably possible changes are based on an analysis of hisioric cuccency volatility, together with any relevant assumptions cegarding near-term futarce volatilicy.
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b)

ii)

)
i)

ii)

The impact on the Group's profit before tax due to changes in the foreign currency exchange rates ace given below:

Particulars Year ended Year cuded
31March 2021 | 31 March 2020

USD sensitivity

INR/USD - Increase by 4.69% {31 March 2020 - 5.45%) {13.11) (41.19)
INR/USD - Decrease by 4 69% (31 March 2020 - 5.45%) 13,01 41,19
GBP sensitivity

TNR/GBP - Inceease by 8.23% (31 March 2020 - 10.65%) 0.14} 0.00)
INR/GBP - Decrease by 8.23% (31 March 2020 - 10.65%) 0.14 0.00
Eure sensitivity

INR/EUR - Increase by T07% (31 March 2020 - 7.57%) (200 (L6
INR/EUR - Decrease by 7.07% (31 March 2020 - 7.57%) 2.00 1064

Interest rate risk

Financial liabilities

The Group’s policy is to minimise interest cate cash ow risk exposures on external financing. At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group is exposed to chaages in interest cates througl bank
bocrowings cacrying variable interest rates. The Group's investments in fixed deposits carry fixed interest mtes.

Interese rate risk exposure

Below is the overall exposure of the Group to interest rate risk:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Variable rate borrowing 2,693.92 372402
Fixed rate borowing 460.44 178.88
Taotal borrowings 3,154.36 3,902.90
Sensitvity
Below is the sensitivity of profit oc loss o interest rates.
Pardculars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
[nterest sensitivity™
Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points 8.76 1211
Interest cates — decrease by 50 basis poiats (8.76) (12.11)

* Holding all ather rariabies constant

Financial assets

The Group's investmenss in redeemable preference shares of its associate companies and government securities, loan 1a a related party and deposits with banks are caccied at amortised cost and ace
fised rate instrurnents. They ace, therefore, not subject to interest e risk as defined in Tnd AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the fature cash fows will fluctuate because of a change n

mackel intecest mees.

Price risk
Exposure

"'he Group's exposure o price risk arises from investmeats held and classified in the balince sheet eithec as fair value through other compeehensive income or at fair value through profic or loss -
(FVTPL). To manage the price risk arising from invesiments, the Group divessifics its porttalio of assets

Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the index on the Group's equity and profit for the year

Impact on profit belore tax

Particulars Year ended Year cnded

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Quoted equity
Price increase by 5% - FVIPL 0.03 001
Price decrease by 5% - FVIPL {0.03) {00l

(This spare bas beer infemtionally fff blank)
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)

(iii)

(v

Capital management

The Group's capital management objectives are

- to ensure it's ability to continue as a poing concern
- 1o provide an adequate return to sharcholders

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk chameteristics of the undedying assets. Tn order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shaces or sell assets 0 reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of its gearing ratio, debt equity mtio and ratic of net debts to its earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation (EBITIIA)

Debt equity ratio
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
‘['oral borrowings (including current manirities of long tecm debt) 3,154.36 3,902.90
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 7737 40.21
Net debt 3,076.99 3,862.69
Total cquity 3,21838 2,730.26
Net debt to equity ratie 95.61% 141.48%
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before exceptional item and tax 587.26 160.82
Less: Other income 40.90 39.89
Add: Depreciation and amertisation expensc 402.96 425,16
Add: Finance cost 480.08 585.53
EBITDA 1,429.40 1,131.62
Net debr 3,076.99 3,862.69
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA 2.15 3.4k
Gearing ratio
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total borcowings {including current maturities of long term debt) 3,134.36 3,902.90
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 77.37 40.21
Net debt 3,076.99 3,862.69
"Total equity 3721838 2,730.26
Equity and net debt 6,295.37 6,592.95
Gearing ratio 48.88% 58.59%

As per loan covenants, the Group is required to comply with requirement relating to certain financial ratio (including total debt to EBITDA/ net worth, EBITDA to gross interest, debt
service coverage ratic and fixed assets covernge ratio). During the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group has complied with the financial rtios as per loan covenants.

Financial information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest and associates which are matesial to the Group

Information about subsidiary with material non-controlling interest

Name of entity Principal activity Principal % of equity
place of business As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Thee Jindal ST Processing and macketing of Spain 65.00 65.00
feecous metals
Summarised balance sheet
Particulars Agat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non-current asseis 17 290
Curzent assets 162.61 255.88
Total assets 165.78 258.78
Non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilites B3.445 227.20
Total liabilities 85.45 227,20
Net assets ¥ 80.33 31.58
Summarised statement of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Nevenue 3179.68 +471.50
‘Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year 0.66 A2
Other comprehensive income 091 -
Total* 1,57 3.72
Attributable to non controlling interest * 0.55 1.30
+ This wareber i before con sicdesing inter-company elimination
Summarised cash flow statement
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net eash inHovw/ (outtlow) from operating activities 2,36 13.90
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities 0.76) (198
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities (2.51) {10.43)
Net cash inflow/ (outfllow) {0.91) 153
Non-controlling interest
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Accumulated balance of material non-controlling intecest 13.25 13.02
13.25 13.02
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I Summarised financial information of associate companies that are material to the Group:

A

@

(i

(dii)

G}

@i

Dividend recerved dunng the year

Name of entity Principal activity Principal % of equity
place of business As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Jindal United Steel Limited Manulacrurer of hot relled India 26.00 26.00
products of stainless steel and
enchon steel
The above assaciate is accounted for using cquity method in the consolidated financial statements. Thete is no quoted market price for Jindal United Steel Limited.
Sumunarised balance shect
Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mon-current assels 292922 3,031.21
Curcent assets 186.15 12428
Total assets 3,115,537 3,155.49
Non-cureent linbilities 2,566.95 2,560.33
Current liabiluies 121,18 16172
Total liabilities 2,688.13 2,722.05
Net assets 42724 43344
Summarised statement of profit and loss
Particulars
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue 91131 279.68
Total comprehensive income
Net profit (41.35) (23.41)
QOther comprehensive income 0.15 {0.19)
Tatal (41.20) (23.60)
Dividend received during the year - -
Reconciliation of summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in the associates recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening aet assets 433.44 340.54
Add: shares issued dunng the year +7.30 116,50
Tatal net assets available for equity holders 480.74 457.04
Less: Loss during the year {(41.35) (23.41)
Add: Other comprehensive income during the year 0.45 019
Clesing net assets 439,54 433,44
Less: Tnsrumenis entircely equity in namree * 75.88 75.95
Closing net assets available for equity holders 36366 357.49
Group's share in %o 26.00 26.00
Group's share in T 94.55 9295
Tnvestment in 10 % Mon-cumularive non-convertible redeemable preference shares (equity portion) 75.88 75.88
Carrying value of investment accounted for using equity method 170.43 168.83
* Lustrnimients enfirely egnify in seeture includes wox-cmttative compulsory convertible preferenve shares issied to Holiding Company.
MName of entity Principal activity Principal % of equity
place of business As ac As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
[Jindal Coke Limited Manufacturer of coke and coke Indin 2600 26.00
products
The above associale is accounted for using equity method in the consolidated financial statement. There is no quoted macket price for Jindal Coke Limited.
Summarised balance sheet
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
Non-current assets 599.50 610.53
Current nssets 227.85 213.09
Total assets 827.35 823.62
Non-current linbilities 551.58 326.69
Cuctent linbilities 47.15 108.54
Total Liabilities 598.73 635,23
Net assets 228.62 188.39
Summarised statement of profit and loss
Particulars - -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Toral revenue 768.64 76483
Tetal comprehensive income
Met profit / (loss) 57.79 (11.75)
Other comprehensive income 006 (0.07)
Tatal 57.85 (11.82)
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(iii) Reconciliation of summarised financial information fo the carrying amount of the interest in the aggociates recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

III

Particulars

Opening net assers

Add: Profit durng the year

Add: Other comprchensive income during the year
Closing net assets

Tess: Instruments enticely equity in nature *
Closing net assets available for equity holders

Group's share in %
Group's share in I

Share of profit dus ro change in sharchalding

Investment in 13 % Non-cumulztive non-convertible redeemable preference shares {equity portion)
Carrying value of investment accounted for using equity method

% Fusiranents entire equity in nelure inclades won-comwiative conpusory conrertible proference shares issued lo Eloiding Company.

Immaterial interest in associate: Jindal Stainless Corparate Managemeant Services Private Limited, an

associate thatis immateral to the parent

Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associate

Group share in

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

50 Code on Social Security

As at As at
31 March 2621 31 March 2020
188.39 200.21
51.79 (11.75)
0.06 ©.07)
246.24 188,39
17.62 17.62
228.62 170.77
26.00 26.00
59.44 44.40)
13.38 13.38
94.62 79.31
167.44 137.09
Asat As ar
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
5.31 416
0.94 128
021 {0.03)
1.15 1,25

“The Code of Social Security, 2020 {Code) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment received Presidential assent in September 2020 Subsequently, the
Ministry of Labour has celeased the draft rules on the aforementoined Code, However, the same is yet to be notificd. The Holding Company will evaluate the impact and make
necessary adjustments to the financial statements in the period when the Code will come into cffect.

This is the summacy of significant accounting golicies and other explanatory
information referred in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FIUN 001076,/ N500013

Rajni YTundra
Partner
Membeeship No.: (158644

Place: New Delhi
Daie: 14 May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Ditectors

Abhyuday Jindal
Managing Director Whol
DIN:\07290474 DIN: 07302532

-

Navneet Raghuvanshi

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretacy
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021

(AN antonntsin T crores. inless stated otherwise)

1 Corporate information, basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

(i) Corporate information

Jindal Scainless Limited (“the Holding Company™) is domiciled and incorporated in India. Its equity shares arc listed at the Bombay Stock
Txchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) and its Global Deposttory Shares are listed at the Luxemburg Stock Exchange (I.5E).
The registered office of the Holding Compary is located at O. P. Jindal Marg, Hisar, Hazyana, India. The Holding Company is engaged in
the business of manufacturing of stainless steel flat products in Austenitic, Ferritic, Martensitic and Duplex grades. The praduct range
includes Ferro Alloys, Stainless Steel Slabs, Hot Rolled Coils, Platesand Sheets, and Cold Rolled Coils and Sheets.

“The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statement of Jindal Stainless Limited and its subsidiaries {collectively the “Group”)
and includes shase of profit of the associates for the year ended 31 March 2021.

(i)

Group structure

I.Subsidiaries

% of equity Interest
Name of the entity Principal Activities ﬁ?:;“g:;;m As at As at
P 31March2021 | 31March2020
Indian
Jindal Stainless Park Limited Development of industrial park India 10000 100.00
Foreign
PT. Jindal Stainless Indonesia Stainless steel manufacturing Indonesia 99.999 99.999
Jindal Stainless FZE Stainless steel manufacturing UAE 100.00 100.00
JSL Group Heldings Pte. Limited Stainless steel manufacturing Singapore 100.00 100.00
Iberjindal 5.1. Stainless steel manufacturing Spain 65.00 65.00
IL Associates
Country of % of equity Interest
Name of the entity Principal Activities [Incorporation As at As at
31 March2021 |31 March2020
Indian
Jindal Stainless Corporate Management services India 50.00 50.00
Jindal United Steel Limited Stainless steel manufactunng India 26.00 26,00
Jindal Coke Limited Coke Manufacturing India 26.00 26.00

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial stztements of the Holding Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies
{Indian Acecounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concem basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on 2 historical cost basis, except for the followingassets and liabilities which have been measured at fair valoe.

+ Certzin financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments};

+ Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fatr value; and

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability inan ozderly transaction between marlet patticipants
at the measurement date.

The consolidated financial statements ace presented in Indian Rupees (*T), which-is the [olding Company's functional and preseatation
cucrency and allamounts are rounded to the nearest crores (except otherwise indicated).

ANDIG
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)

()

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiasies are all entatics (including structured cntities) over which the Group has centrol. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed Lo, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through 1ts
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiasies are fully consolidated from the date on which control s transferred to the
Group. They ace deconsolidated From. the date that control ceases. Profit/{loss) and other comprehensive income (‘OCP) of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the period are recognised from the cffective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as
applicable. All the consolidated subsidiaries have a consistent reporting date of 31 March 2021.

The Group combines the consolidated financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intezcompany transactions, balances and unrealised gaias on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction pravides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asser.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s statement of profit and loss and net assets that
is not held by the Group. Profit/{loss) and cach component of OCI are attributed to the cquity holders of the parent company and tothe
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The Group attributes total
comprehensive income or loss of the subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non-controlling interests based on their
respective ownership interests.

Agsociates

Investment in entities in which there exists significant influence but not a controlling interest aze accounted for under the equity method iLe.
the investment is initially recorded at cost, identifying any goodwill/capital reseeve acising at the time of acquisition, as the case may be,
which will be inherent in investment. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
share of net assets of the investee, adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of the Group. The
consolidated statement of profit and loss includes the Group’s share of the results of the operations of the investee. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carcying amount of the Investment.

Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current ¢lassification

The Group presents assets and liabilitiesin the balance sheet based on current/ non-curcent classification.

An asset s treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realisedd or intended to be sold or consumed 1n normal operating cycle,

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

« Expected to be realised within iw elve months after the reporting pedod, or

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

» Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

« Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

+ it is due to be settled within twelve monthsafter the reporting period, or

+ There is no unconditional dght to defer the settlement of the liability forat least twelve monthsafter the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 2s non-current assets and liabilities,

Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current oz non-current classificarion of assets and liabilities.
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b) Property,plant and equipment

)

Recaguition and initial meavirement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises the purchase price, horrowing cost (if capitalisation
ctiteria are met) and any attributable costs of brnging the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discountand tebates
are deducted in asrivingat the pucchase price. Subsequent costs areincluded in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits actributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item will flow
to the Group. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profir or loss as incurred.

In case an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired on deferred payment basis, interest expenses included in deferred payment is
recognised as interest expense and not included in cast of asset.

Subsequent measurerent {depreciation and useful lives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Act, computed

on the basis of useful lives presceibed under Schedule 1T of the Act or technical evaluation of the property, plant and equipment by the
manragement which are mentioned below:

Tangible assets Usefullife (years)
Buildings 2-60
Electrical installations 1-35
Continuous process plant and equipment 1-35
Railway sidings 15

Power line and bay extension 15-20
Furniture and fixtures 1-10
Vehicles 3-10
Office equipment 1-15

I'he residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made toany asset, or where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or
destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific

useful life from the month of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished
or destroyed or replaced.

De-recogitition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no futue
economic henefits are cxpected from its usc or disposal. Any gain or loss ardsing on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in theincome statement when the asset 1s derecognized.

Intangible assets
Recggnition and initial measurenment

Intangible assets acquited separately are measured on initial recognitionat cost. Following initial recognition, mtangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurenent (amortisation and wseful fives)

All intangiblc assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible assct is based on a number of factorsincludingthe e ffects of obsolescence,
demand, competition, and other economic Factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the leve
of maintenance expenditurestequired to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.
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d)

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, The following uscful livesare applied:

Asset category Estimated usefullife (in years)
Mine development expenses (stripping costs) |Over the period of expected duration of benefits

Software 5

“The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets axe reviewed at Icast at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recopnised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogpised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purpases, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash
generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at casl:-generating unit level.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication thatan asset may be impaired. [Fany such indication exists,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recaverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs s less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction 1s treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date, there is an
indication thata previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists then the recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost. Impairment losses previously recognised are accordingly
reversed 1n the statement of profit and loss.

To determine value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from cach cash-generating unit and derermines a suitable
discount sate in order ro calculate the preseat value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked
to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future re-organisations and asset enhancements.
Discount factorsare determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect cucrent macket assessment of the time value of money
and asset-specific risk factors.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, consteuction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily takesa substantial
period of time o get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrewing costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest calculated using the effective interest method thatan entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
barrowing costs.

Eligible transaction/ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arcangement of borrowings are adjusted with the proceeds of the
borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories are statedat lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost in respect of the various items of inventory is com puted as under:

+ Raw material cost includes direct expenses and is determined based on weighted average method.
« Stores and spares cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

+ Tn case of Anished goods, cost includes raw material cost plus conversion costs and other overheads incurred to bring the goods to their
present locationand condition.

« Tn case af stock-in-trade, cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price 1n the ordinary course of business less any applicable seiling expenses. Provision for
obsolescence and slow moving inventory is made based on management’s best estimates of net realisable value of such inventories.
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g) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presetifation cirrency

The consolidated financial statementsare presented in Indian Rupees {(INR or %) and are rounded to two decimal places of crozes, which is
also the Holding Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in Foreign currencies arc initially secorded by the Group at its Functional currency spat cates at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curzencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences ansing on sertlement or translation of monetary items as at reporting date are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost ina foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at faic value in 2 foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the pain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCL or profit or loss, respectively),

Exchange differences

As per the generally accepted accounting principles followed by the Holding Company till 31 March 2016, exchange differences arnsing on
translation/ settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary 1tems pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset were adjusted to
the cost of the asset. Exchange differences arising on other long-term foreign currency menetary items existing as on 31 March 2016 ar
accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Diffecence Account” and amortised over the remaining life of the
cancecned monetary item. The Group has elected to continue with the said policy on exchange differences arising on long term foreign
currency monetary items existingon 31 March 2016, asallowed under Ind AS 101.

For this purpose, the Group treatsa foreign monetacy itemas “long-term foreign currency monetary item”, ifit has a term of 12 months ot
more at the date of itsorigination.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations {none of which has the currency of a nyperinflationary economy) that have a
funcrional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
« assets and liabiliticsace tzanslated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet.

{ncome and expenses ace translated at average exchange rates {unless this s not 2 reasonable approximation of the curnulative effect of the
rates prevailingon the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses ace translated ac the dates of the transactions) , and

All resulting exchange differences are recoguised in other comprehensive income.
h) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
As a lessee

Classification of fease

The Group’s lensed asset classes primasily consist of leases for land and plant and machinery, The Group assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a perod of himein exchange for consideration. ‘To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: {i) the contract snvolves the use of an ideatified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all
of the economic benefits From use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iif} the Group has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

Recagnition and initial measarement of right-gf-use aseels

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognises 4 right-of-usc asset {(*ROU7) and a corresponding lease liability forall
lease arrangements inwhich it is 2 lessee, except for leases with a term of [welve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases.
For these short-term and low value Ieases, the Group recognizes t ts s a6 operaling expense on a stright-line basis over
the term of the lcase.
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Certain lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities include these options when it is reasonably cestain that they will be exercised.

Subsequent measurement of right-of-use asset

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any intial direct costs less any leasc incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset.

Leaseliabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease oz, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rales in the country
of domicile of these leases. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilicy are made up of fixed payments (including
in substance fixed payments} and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measucement, the liability will be
reduced for payments made and increased for interest, Lease liabilitics ace remeasured with a corresponding adjustment ro the related
right of use asset if the Group changes itsassessment of whether it will exercise an extension or 4 termination option-

i) Fair value measurement

Fair vaiue is the price that wou!d be received to sell an asset or paid to cransfes a liability inan ordecly transaction betwecn market participants
at the measurernent date. The fair value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal macket, in the most advantageous masket for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantapeous market must be accessible by the Group.

The Fair value af an asset or a liability is measured usiag the assumptions that market pacticipants would usc when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market pacticipantsact in their economic best interest.

A faiz value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’sability to generate cconomic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the ciccumstances and for which suffictent data are available to measure fairvalue,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which Fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial results are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described s follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 7 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level snput that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 — Valuation techriques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fatr value measurement is Unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfecs have occurred between levelsin the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest levelinput thatis significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.

For the purpose of Fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and labilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fairvalue hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue recognition from sale of products and services

Recegnition

Sales (including scrap sales) are recopnised when control of products is transfesred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and are
accounted for net of returas and rebates Control of goods refers ta the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from goods. Sales, 25 disclosed, are exclusive of goods and services tax.

"l'o detersnine if it is acting as a principal or a3 an agent, the Group assesses whether it has exposure to the significant risks and rewards
associated with tlie rendenng of logistics secvices. Revenue from rendering of logistic services provided toits customer after the teansfer of
control of underlying goods is recognized on net basis i e. after deducting the amount contractually payable to franspocters out of the total
consideration received and is recognized once the facilitation of s s done as the Group does not agsume any perfo omance
obligation.
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k)

Income in respect of service contracts, whichare generally in the nature of providing infrastructuce and support services, are recognised in
statement of profit and loss when such services are rendered. Customers are invoiced periodically (generally on monthly basss).

For each performance obligation identified, the Group determines 2t contract inception whether it satisfies the performance obligation over
time or satisfics the performance obligation ata point in time. If the Group does not satisfy a performance obligation over time, the
performance obligationis satisfied ata point in time. A receivable s recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the case of point in
time recognition where consideration 15 unconditional because only the passage of time is required.

The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance oblipations and reports these
amountsas other liabilitiesin the balance sheet. Similarly, if the Group satistiesa performance obligation before it receives the consideration,
the Group recognises either a contract asset or a receivablein its balance sheet, depending on whether something other than the paseage of
time is required before the consideration is due.

Measurement

The Group censiders the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction
price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferdng promised goods or services toa
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes). The consideration promised in 4 contract
with 2 customer may include fixed consideration, varable consideration (if reversal is less likely in future), or both. The sale of goods is
typically made under credit payment terms differing from customer o customer and ranges between 0-90 days. No clement of financing is
deemed present as the sales are largely made on advance payment terms or with credit term of not more than one year.

'The transaction price is zllocated by the Group to each performance obligation {or distinct good or service) in an amount that depicts the
amount of consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transfexrring the promised goods or services to the customer.

Pedodically, the Group entess into volume or other rebate programs where once a cectain volume or other conditions are met, it refunds
the customer some portion of the amounts previously billed or paid. For such arrangements, the Group only recognizes revenuc for the
amounts it ultimately expects to realize from the castomer. The Group cstimares the variable consideration for these programs using the
most likely amount method or the expected value method, whicheverapproach best predicts the amount of the consideration based on the
terms of the contract and available information and updates its estimates in each reporting period.

Income recognition

Interestincome

Literest income from fimancial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as intercst income within otherincome. Interest income
on fimancial assets at amortised cose and Anancial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest method is reco gnised in the
statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

Interest incorme is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross catrying amount of a financial assct except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaiced financial asscts the effective intercst rate isapplied to the net carryingamount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance}.

Dividends
Dividends are ceceived From financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCL Dividends ace recognised as other income in

" profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the

dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

Financial instruments

Financial instruments atc recogaised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are measured
initially at faiz value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially of
fair value.

If the Group <etermines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price the Group accounts for that instrument at
that dateas follows:

+ at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
lability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. The Group rec ognises the

difference between the fair value at initial recopnition and the transa as a gain or loss.
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« in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition
and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Group recognises that deferred difference as 4 min or loss only to the extent thatit
arises from a change in a factor {including time) that marlcet participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liahilitiesis described below.

Financial assets
Classification and suibseqrent measirement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recogrition:

. Financial assets at amortised cost—a nancial instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditicns are met:

o The asset is held withina bustness model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

«  Contractual rerms of the asser give rise on specified dates to cash flowsthat are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPD) on
the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurerneat, such Aoancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Effective
{nterest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estamated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net
carrying amount of the Anancial assets. The future cash flowsinclude all ocher transaction costs paid or zeceived, premiums or discounts if
any, etc.

. Financial assets at fairvalue

¢ Investmentsin equity instruments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured 2t fair value. Equity instruments
whichare held for tradingare penerally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL}. For all other equity instruments, the
Group decides to classify the same cither as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI) or fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL). The Group makes such election onan instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial r ecognition
and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCL, then all Faiz value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recogaised in the other comprehensive mcome {OCI). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profitand loss, even on
gale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss wathin equity. Dividends on such investments are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Equity instzuments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

e Derivative assets - All derivative assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).
De-recagrition of financial assets

A financial asset is primanly de-recogaised when the rights co receive cash flows from the asset have cxpired or the Group has transferced
its rights to ceceive cash flows from the asset.

Revlassification of financial asseis

"T'he Group determines classification of financial assers and liabulitics on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financizl assets whicli are cquity instcuments and financial liabilies. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification
ismade only if there isa change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent.
The Group’s sevior management detemines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to
the Group’s aperations. Such changes are cvident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins
or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 1f the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applics the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date whichis the fisst day of the immediately next reporting period following the change i business
model. The Group does not restate any previously recopnised gains, lasses (including impairment gains or losses) or intcrest.

Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurenient

After initial recognilion, the financial liabilities, other than derivative liabilities, are subsequently measured at amortis ed cost using the
effective interest method.

Amortised cost is calculated by cansidering any discount or premium og acquisitson and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The effect of EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the fit and loss.
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All dedvative liabilities acc measuredat fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recgnition of finarcial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the abligation under the liability is dischazged oz cancelled or expires. When an existing ficancial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substanrially
modsfied, sach an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recopnition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the staternent of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financialinstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a curzently enforceable legal
fight to offscr the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

All finaacial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at each reporting date to identify whether chere isany
objective evidence thata financial assct or a group of knancial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impaicment aze applied for
each category of financial assets.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected ceedit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
for Binancial assets carred at amortised cost.

IiCL is the weighted average of difference becween all contractual cash flows that aze due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash Aows that the Graup expects to receive, discounted st the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default
oceurring as the weights, When estimating the cash flows, the Group is required to consider —

+ All contractual termsof the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
+ Cash Aows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivables

i For debtors that are not past due — The Group applies approach required by lad AS 109 'Financial Instrument, which requires
lifetime expected credit losses to be recognised upon initiml recognition of receivables. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses
resulting from all possible defavlt events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Life time expected credit losses are assessed and accounted based on Group’s historical counter party default rates and forecast of
macro- economic factors, by dividing receivables that are not considered to be individually significant by reference to the business
segment of the counter party and other shared credir risk chazacteristics to evaluate the expected credit lass. The expected credit loss
estimare is then based  on recent historical counter party default rates. The Group defines default as an event when the financial
asset is past due for mare than 365 days. This definition is based on management’s expectation of the time period beyond whichifa
receivableis outstanding, itis an objective evidence of impairment.

ii. Fordebtors considered past due —any enhancement in the acerual done for expected credit loss on individually sigraficant receivables
1s made to recognise any additional expected credit loss on amount recoverable. The Group writes off trade receivables when thee
is nio objective evidence that such amount would not be recovered. Financial assets that are written-offare still subject to enforcement
activity by the Group.

Other finaicial assets

For recopnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credie risk since initial recognition. 1f the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measuzes the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else ar an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Group uses thechange in the rsk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial
asset, To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occuering on the financial asset as at the balance sheet
date with the dsk of 2 default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicatrve of significant increases in credit risk since
initial recogrition. The Group assumes that the credit risk ona financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial asset is determingd to have low credit risk at the balance shect date
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Post-employment and other employee benefits

Dafined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into an independent fund administered by the

govecnment, for example, contribution towards Employees’ Provident Fund Scheme and Employees’ State Insurance Scheme. The Group
has 0o lepal or constructive obligations to pay Further contributionsafter its payment of the fixed contribution, which are recognised as an
expense in the year that related employee secvices are received.

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates defined benefit benefits plans in India and Indonesia. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefic plan s
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Gratuity fund of the Holding Company isadmuristered
through Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are
recognized immediately in the balance sheet witha corresponding debit or credit to retained carings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Other employee benefits
Long-term enployee benefits: Conpensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet date is
recognised on the basis of undiscounted value of cstimated amount required tobe paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed
by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected tobe availed more than one year after the balance
sheet date is estimated based on an actuarial valuation pecformed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuasial gains and losses arsing from past experience and changes in actuasial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and lass in
the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Other short-ters benefity

Fxpense in respect of other shoct-term benefits is recopnized on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period duting which services
are rendered by the employees,

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Pravisions ate recognized only when there s a present ohiigation, as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obhigation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates arc reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a cucrent pre-tax rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cbligation. When provisions are discounted,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for

+ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the contzol of the Group or
+ Present obligations arising fram past events where itis not probable that an cut flow of resources will be requited to settle the obligation
or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of ncome is virtually certain, relared asser is disclosed.

Earnings pershare

Basic earnings pez shace is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attdbutable to equity shareholders (after deducting

attdbutable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the perod is adjusted for eventsincluding a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per shaze, the net profit or loss for the period attrdbutable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only

@Npon to ordinary shares would decrease earnings per
share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

&
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q) Taxes

"

)

t)

Current bicome-tax

Cusrent income-tax assets and liabilities are measuzed at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities of the
respective entities consolidated in these financial statements. The  tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that aze
enacted or substantively enacted, at the 1eporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable mncome.

Current income-tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss i3 recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undedying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retusns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 provided using the liability method on temporary differencesbetween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and theis carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitiesare recagnised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and any unused tax losses. Deferced tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
ageinst which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized
Deferzed tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The cartying
amount of deferred tax assets are reviewedat each balance sheet date and derecopnized to the extent it is no longer probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available against which such deferred rax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax relating to irems recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

Defetred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxesrelate to the same taxable entity and the same taxarion authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT?) credit is recognized as an asset only when and o the extentit is probable that the Group will pay normal
incomc tax during the specified periad. In the year in which MAT eredit becomes eligible to be secognized as anasset, the said asset is created
by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MA'T credit entitlement. The Group reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is not probable that the Group will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognised where there {s reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it 15 cecognised as income on a systemnatic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the prant relates to an asset, it is
recopnised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset

Segment reporting

Opecating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Identification of segmients:

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment, the eperating segments used to present segment information are 1dentified based on
information reviewed by the Group’s management toallocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment
isa component of the Group that engages in business activitics from whch it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactrons with 2ny of the Group’s other components. Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by
the management team whichhas been identifiedas the chief operating decision maker (CODM), 1o make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the sepment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

Cash and cash equivalents
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u) Exceptionalitems

™

(vi)

On certain oceasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Group 15 such
that its disclasure improves the understanding of the pecformance of the Group. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item
and accordingly, disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Signilicant managementjudgementin applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The followingare the critical judgments and the key estimates concerning the future that management has made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements or that have a significant sisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Allowance for expected creditosses — The allowance for expected credit losses reflects management’s estimate of losses inherent in 1t
credit portfolio. This allowance is based on Group’s estimate of the losses to be incurred, which derives from past experience with similac
receivables, cuccent and historical past due amounts,dealers termination rates, write-offsand collections, the monitoring of portfolio credit
quality and current and projected economic and market conditions

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax asscts can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability
af the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires
assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date, basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Group assesses the

requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilitics However, the actual future cutcome may be different from this
judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable famortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable asscts
at each reporting date, based on the expected utiliy of the assets. Uncercainties in these estimates relate to technical and ecenormic
obsolescence that may change the utility of assets,

Defined benefit chligation (DBO)} — Management’s estimate of the DBO 15 based on a number of underlying assumptions such as standard
rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Vardation in these assumptions may significantly impact
the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments {where active
market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market pacticipants would price
the instrument.

Contingent liabilities — The Group is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a range of matters, which are pending in
various jurisdictions. Due to the uncertzinty inherent in such matters, it is difficult to predict the final outcome of such matters. The cases
and claims against the Group often raise difficult and complex faceual and legal issues, which are subject te many uncertainties, including
but not limited to the factsand circamstances of each particulat case and claim, the jursdictionand the differcnces in applicable law. Inthe
normal course of business management consults with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The
Group accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome 15 probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Standards issued but notyet effective
On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a natification, amended Schedule TTT of the Act. The amendments
revise Division I, I and III of Schedule 11T and aze applicable from 1 April 2021. Some of the key amendments relatingt o Division IT which

relate to the Group are:

Balance Sheet:
¢ Lease liahilities should be separately disclosed under the head *financial liabilities”, duly distingnished as current or non-current.

o Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such 2s changes in equity share capital duc to prior period
errors and restated balances at the beginuing of the current reporting period.

-
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*  1f the Group has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then
disclosure of details of where it has been used.
¢ Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements,
compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held inname of the Group, loans and
advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (IKMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Staternent of profit and loss:

¢ Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undiselosed income and crypta or virtual currency
specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.

¢  The amendments are extensive and the Group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

(Thir space bas been Intentionally left biank)




